HEWLETT-PACKARD

M HEWLETT 28C

2: 1: 'B^2+2*A+B+B^2 COURT EXAMPLE TO A COURT EXAMPLE COURT EXAMPLE TO A COURT EXAMPLE

+++ TRIG

4

STO

EVAL DFF ON ENTER CHS EEX DROP

7 8

5

6

Step-by-Step Examples for Your HP-28C

Algebra and College Math

Object Type

SPACE

Algebra and College Math

Step-by-Step Examples for Your HP-28C



Edition 1 April 1987 Reorder Number 00028-90041

Notice

The information contained in this document is subject to change without notice.

Hewlett-Packard makes no warranty of any kind with regard to this material, including, but not limited to, the implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. Hewlett-Packard shall not be liable for errors contained herein or for incidental or consequential damages in connection with the furnishing, performance, or use of this material.

Hewlett-Packard assumes no responsibility for the use or reliability of its software on equipment that is not furnished by Hewlett-Packard.

© 1987 by Hewlett-Packard Co.

This document contains proprietary information that is protected by copyright. All rights are reserved. No part of this document may be photocopied, reproduced, or translated to another language without the prior written consent of Hewlett-Packard Company.

Portable Computer Division 1000 N.E. Circle Blvd. Corvallis, OR 97330, U.S.A.

Printing History

Edition 1

April 1987

Mfg No. 00028-90056

Welcome...

... to the HP-28C Step-by-Step Booklets. These books are designed to help you get the most from your HP-28C calculator.

This booklet, *Algebra and College Math*, provides examples and techniques for solving problems on your HP-28C. A variety of algebraic, trigonometric and geometric problems are designed to familiarize you with the many functions built into your HP-28C.

Before you try the examples in this book, you should be familiar with certain concepts from the owner's documentation:

- The basics of your calculator how to move from menu to menu, how to exit graphics and edit modes, and how to use the menu to assign values to, and solve for, user variables.
- Entering numbers and algebraic expressions into the calculator.

Please review the section "How To Use This Booklet." It contains important information on the examples in this booklet.

For more information about the topics in the *Algebra and College Math* booklet, refer to a basic textbook on the subject. Many references are available in university libraries and in technical and college bookstores. The examples in the booklet demonstrate approaches to solving certain problems, but they do not cover the many ways to approach solutions to mathematical problems.

Our thanks to Roseann M. Bate of Oregon State University for developing the problems in this book.

Contents

- 7 How To Use This Booklet
- **9** Rational Functions and Polynomial Long Division
- Function Evaluation
- Simultaneous Linear Equations
- 24 Quadratic Equations
- Logarithms
- Graphs of Algebraic Functions
- Polynomial Equations
- Determinants of Matrices
- Systems of Linear Equations
- Infinite Sequences and Series
- 49 Hyperbolic and Inverse Hyperbolic Functions
- Trigonometric Relations and Identities
- Trigonometric Functions for One and Two Angles
- Graphs of Trigonometric Functions
- Inverse Trigonometric Functions
- Trigonometric Equations
- Complex Numbers
- Rectangular Coordinates
- Polar Coordinates
- The Straight Line
- The Circle
- The Parabola
- The Ellipse and Hyperbola
- Parametric Equations

How To Use This Booklet

Please take a moment to familiarize yourself with the formats used in this booklet.

Keys and Menu Selection

A box represents a key on the calculator keyboard:

ENTER 1/x
STO
PLOT
ALGEBRA

In many cases, a box represents a shifted key on the HP-28C. In the example problems, the shift key is NOT explicitly shown (for example, ARRAY requires the press of the shift key, followed by the ARRAY key, found above the "A" on the left keyboard).

The "inverse" highlight represents a menu label:

DRAW	(found in the PLOT menu)
ISOL	(found in the ALGEBRA menu)
ABCD	(a user-created name, found in the USER menu)

Menus typically include more menu labels than can be displayed above the six redefinable menu keys. Press NEXT and PREV to roll through the menu options. For simplicity, NEXT and PREV are NOT shown in the examples.

Solving for a user variable within $\underline{\underline{|}}$ SOLVR $\underline{\underline{|}}$ is initiated by the shift key, followed by the appropriate user-defined menu key:

≣ ABCD ≣.

The keys above indicate the shift key, followed by the user-defined key labeled "ABCD". Pressing these keys initiates the Solver function to seek a solution for "ABCD" in a specified equation.

The symbol <> indicates the cursor-menu key.

Interactive Plots and the Graphics Cursor

Coordinate values you obtain from plots using the INS and DEL digitizing keys may differ from those shown, due to small differences in the positions of the graphics cursor. The values you obtain should be satisfactory for the Solver root-finding that follows.

Display Formats and Numeric Input

Negative numbers, displayed as

-5 -12345.678 [[-1,-2,-3 [-4,-5,-6 [...

are created using the CHS key:

5 CHS 12345.678 CHS [[1 CHS ,2 CHS , ...

The examples in this book typically specify a display format for the number of decimal places. If your display is set such that numeric displays do not match exactly, you can modify your display format with the $\boxed{\text{MODE}}$ menu and the $\boxed{\equiv \text{FIX}}$ key within that menu (e.g. $\boxed{\text{MODE}} 2 \boxed{\equiv \text{FIX}}$).

Rational Functions and Polynomial Long Division

The quotient of two polynomials is a rational function. The Taylor series command TAYLR can be used to find the equivalent polynomial if the denominator divides evenly into the numerator. If it does not, then TAYLR gives an expression that approximates the quotient. The following examples show how to evaluate rational functions.

Example: Using the command TAYLR, find the equivalent polyomial for the following rational function.

$$\frac{6x^3 - 5x^2 - 8x + 3}{2x - 3}$$

Press the following keys to put the expression for the numerator in level 1.

'6×X^3-5×X^2-8×X+3 ENTER

1:	'6*X^3-5*X^2-8*X+3'
	10,000 50000 000101
2:	
ġ.	
4:	

Duplicate the expression and then store it in a variable named N (for "numerator").

ENTER N STO

4: 3:	
2: 1:	'6*X^3-5*X^2-8*X+3'

N has been added to the User menu.

Enter in the expression for the denominator and symbolically divide the numerator by the denominator.

USER '2 × X-3 ENTER ÷



Enter in the variable to be evaluated.

'X ENTER



By inspection, the quotient is of order 2 (n = 2). Add the order to the stack to complete the three inputs needed to execute the Taylor series command. Also set the display to FIX 2.

2	ENT	ΈR	
MC	DE	2	FIX

3:	'(6*X^3-5*X^2-8*X+3
2	_'X'
1	2.00
STU	I FIX J SOL ENG DEG L KHD J

Execute the Taylor function.

ALGEBRA

3:	
2:	'-1+2 * X+3*X^2'
TAYLR ISO	L QUAD SHOW OBGET EXGET

The equivalent polynomial for the rational function is $-1+2x+3x^2$.

Example: Find the polynomial quotient and remainder equal to the following rational function.

$$\frac{6x^3 - 5x^2 - 8x + 3}{3x^2 + 2x + 1}$$

The denominator does not divide evenly into the numerator. The algorithm to solve polynomial long division is on pages 154 and 155 in the HP-28C Reference Manual. The steps of that algorithm will be followed in this example and referring to them may help you understand the problem better.

This example assumes that the expression $-1+2x+3x^2$ is in level 1 and that you've stored $6x^3-5x^2-8x+3$ in the variable N. Modify the expression in level 1 by substituting "1" for "-1" in the first position of the expression. This is accomplished by pressing the following keys.

- 1 ENTER
- {1 ENTER

3:	'-1+2*X+3*X^2'
2:	1.00
1:	
UHYLK	ISOL [CONDISHOW OBGET EXGET

Make the substitution for the first object.

OBSUB

3:	
1:	'1+2*X+3*X^2'
COLCTIE	XPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBEXSUB

Store this expression in a variable named D (for "denominator") and store the initial value of 0 in a variable named Q (for "quotient").

3: 2: 1:

D STO 0'0 STO

Recall the numerator N to the stack.

USER **■**N**■**

Put the denominator D on the stack.

D

By inspection, divide the highest-order term in the numerator $(6x^3)$ by the highest-order term in the denominator $(3x^2)$. The quotient term is 2x. Enter in 2x.

 $^{1}2 \times X$ ENTER

Make a copy of the quotient term and retur to the stack.

ENTER ≣Q≣

+

Add this copy to Q.

Store this result in Q.

'Q STO

'1+2*X+
N

3: 2: 1:

3:	'6*X	(^3-5	5*X^2	2-8*	X+3'
2 :		1	[+2*)	<+3¥	X^2!
1 i Q	D	N			2**

3:	'6*X^3-5*X^2-8*X+3'
2:	'1+2*X+3*X^2' '2*X'
a	



COLCT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUB EXSUB

3 2 1	'6*>	(^3-5	5*X^2 +2*2	2-8* <+3*	X+3¦
0.	D	N			

Multiply the quotient term and the denominator.

×

-

Subtract the result from the numerator.

Simplify the result by expanding the expression and then collecting terms.

1:

2: 1:

-10¥X'

By inspection, another expansion is required for the x^2 term.

EXPAN

All terms are fully expanded, so now collect terms.

COLCT

The result is a new and reduced numerator. Since its degree is equal to the denominator's degree, continue this process of finding a quotient term, adding it to Q, and reducing the numerator.

Put D on the stack.

Collect terms until complete.

USER D

3: 2: 1:	'3-9*X^2-10*X' '1+2*X+3*X^2'
QD	N

1 :	'6*(X*(X*X))-5*(X*X)
1	8:00:0000000000000000000000000000000000
	(2*X)+3*(X*X)*(2*X))
COL	T EXPANISTZE FORM IORSUREXSUR

'3+6*X^3-6*X^3-9*X

COLCT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUB EXSUE







'6*(X*X^2)-5*(X*X)-8



Divide the highest-order term in the numerator $-9x^2$ by the highest-order term in the denominator $3x^2$. By inspection, the result is -3. Enter in this quotient term.

3 CHS ENTER



Make a copy of the quotient term and return the quotient variable to the stack.

+

3: -3.0 2: -3.0 1: '2*×

3: '1+2*X+3*X^2' 2: -3.00 1: '-3+2*X' ♀ ▷ N

Store the result in Q.

Add this copy to Q.

'Q STO

Multiply the quotient term and the denominator.

×

3: 2: 1:	'3-9*X^2-10*X' '(1+2*X+3*X^2)*(-3)'
Q.	D N

Subtract the resulting expression from the new numerator.

-



Simplify the expression by expansion and collection of terms.

ALGEBRA EXPAN

1:	'3-9*(X*X)-10*X-((1+ 2*X)*(-3)+3*X^2*(-3)
)'
COLO	T EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUB EXSUB



Continue until all terms are fully expanded.

EXPAN

1:	'3-9*(X*X)-10*X-(1*(-3)+2*X*(-3)+3*(X*X)	
ł	*(-3))'	
COL	CT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBEXSUB	

Now collect terms.

3:	
2:	
11:	'6-4*X'
COLOT SUPPORT STOR	I STORE I TRANSPORT
COLCI EAPHN SIZE	FORT DESCEIENSOR

The result is the new numerator. Since its degree is less than the denominator's degree, the iteration process ends. The polynomial quotient is stored in Q, and the remainder equals the final numerator divided by the denominator.

USER Q

3: 2: 1:			'6- '-3+	4*X' 2*X'
Q	D	N		

Thus the answer is

$$-3+2x+\frac{6-4x}{3x^2+2x+1}$$

The command TAYLR can be used to approximate this result. Executing TAYLR with n = 1 gives the result 3-14x.

Purge the variables created in this example and clear the stack.

{ 'Q''D''N PURGE

Function Evaluation

The Solver can find the values of a function (be it of one variable or of several variables) given the values of the independent variables. The values can be real or complex numbers or symbolic expressions.

Given the function $f(x,y) = 2\pi x^2 |\sqrt{y^2 - x^2}|$ find $f(1,\sqrt{2})$, $f(\sin T,1)$, and f(3,5).

Clear the stack, set the display format, and set the symbolic evaluation flag.

CLE	AR			
MOD	DE 4		FIX ≣	
36	ENT	ER	SF	ENTER



Note in the keystrokes above, you could also use $\exists SF \equiv$ within the TEST menu, as an alternative to typing the letters 'SF' and the ENTER key.

Put the expression for the function in level 1 and store it in the variable EQ.

$$\begin{array}{c} 2 \times \pi \times X^{2} \times \\ ABS(\sqrt{(Y^{2}-X^{2})}) \quad ENTER \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 2: \\ 1: \ 2 \times \pi \times X^{2} \times ABS(J(Y^{2}-X \times 2)) \\ \hline \\ SIDE(FIX) \quad SIDE(FIX) \quad SIDE(FIX) \quad OEGE(RAD) \end{array}$$

2:

From the SOLV menu, press the $\overline{\underline{\|}}$ SOLVR $\overline{\underline{\|}}$ key to display a menu of the independent variables.

STEQ

3: 2: 1:		
X	Y	EXPR=

STEQ RCEQ SOLVR ISOL QUAD SHOW

Store a "1" in the variable X.

1 **X**

X:	1.0	1999		
2:				
1 *	Y	EXPR=		

Store the square root of two in the variable Y.



Y:	1.4142
2:	
1:	U [UDB-]
Ň	Y EXPRE

Evaluate the expression.

EXPR=

EXPRE	'2*π*1.0000'
2:	'2*#¥1 0000'
8 9	

Convert this expression into a number.

→NUM

3: 2: 1: 6.2832 8 Y EXPR=

Clear the previous result and evaluate $f(\sin T, 1)$.

DROP

3: 2: 1: X Y EXFR=

Put $\sin T$ on the stack.

TRIG		
SIN	Т	ENTER

3:				ISTN	(1)
					N 1 Z
SIN	ASIN	COS	ACOS	TĤN	ATAN

Store the expression in the variable X.

SOLV	X
------	---

X: SIN(T) 2: 1: T: Y EXPR=

Note the Solver variable X has been replaced by the variable T. Store the number one in the variable Y.

1 Y

1 1	.0000
2	
1:	

Now compute the function value.

EXPR=

To redisplay the variable X, its current symbolic value must be purged.

'X PURGE

2:	'2*π*SIN(T)^2*ABS(√(
1:	1-SIN(T)^2))'
X	Y EXPR=

Note that the variable X is again displayed in the Solver menu.

For the last part of the example, clear flag 36 to set the calculator in the numerical evaluation mode and force numeric evaluation of π in the expression.

DROP 36 TEST CF

g	:									
ī	:									
	SF	CF	F	\$2	F	C?	FS?	C	FC:	۰C

3.0000

5.0000

Y EXPR=

EXPR=

Put a 3 on the stack and store it in X.

3 ENTER SOLV SOLVR X

Store 5 in Y.

5 <u>Y</u>

Evaluate the expression.

EXPR=

EXPR=226.194	
2:	
1:	226.1947

With flag 36 set, we would have obtained the result ' $2^*\pi^*9^*4$ '.

Lest the variables X and Y should be inadvertently incorporated in other calculations, you may elect to purge them from memory. You may also wish to set flag 36 to its default setting.

{ 'Y''X''EQ' PURGE 36 SF ENTER

Simultaneous Linear Equations

A system of two linear equations in two unknowns can be solved by first plotting the graphs of the two lines, finding the point of intersection (if any exists), and then solving for the unknown variables by using the Solver with the intersection point as the initial guess. The system can also be solved using matrices, but this method won't work if the lines are parallel or coincident. A third method is to isolate one of the variables for one of the equations, plug this expression into the other equation (giving you one equation in one unknown), and then solving for that one unknown by using the Solver.

For example, solve the following system

$$\begin{cases} 2x + 1y = 6 \\ 5x - 4y = 3 \end{cases}$$

Clear the display and set the mode to FIX 4.

CLEAR 4 MODE FIX

3:	
2:	
1:	
STD [FIX] SCI ENG DEG [RAD]

Method 1: Using PLOT.

To graph the system, first isolate the variable y in both of the equations and then set both of these expressions equal to each other.

'2 × X+Y=6''Y ENTER	3: 2: '2*X+Y=6' 1: 'Y' STO [FIX] SCL ENG (CEG [RAD]
	3: 2: 1: '6-2*X' TAYLA ISOL (2000 SHOR ORGET(SHOR)
'5 × X-4×Y=3''Y ≣ ISOL≣	3: 2: '6-2*X' 1: '(5*X-3)/4'

= ENTER



Prepare to plot the lines by purging any prior plot parameters. Store the equation in EQ and draw it.

PLOT 'PPAR PURGE

3:		
Ž:		
7		
<u>1 •</u>		
STEO, RCEO	PMIN PMAS	INDEP DRAM





Exit from the plot display. Move the center of the plot to (0,1) and draw the graph again.

ATTN (0,1 CENTR DRAW



Move the cursor to the approximate point of intersection and digitize the point by pressing \boxed{INS} . Press \boxed{ATTN} to return to the stack display. The coordinates of the point are returned to the stack.

▷ ▷ · · · ˆ ˆ · · · INS ATTN

3:	
2:	
1:	(2.1000,1.8000)
STEO	RCEQ PMIN PMAX INDEP DRAW

Display the Solver menu. The menu consists of the variable X, LEFT =, and RT =.

3:	
1:	(2.1000,1.8000)
X	LEFT= RT=

Store the digitized point in the variable X as the initial estimate (the Solver only uses the first coordinate).

≣X≣

X:	(2.1000,1.8000)
2:	
8	LEFT= RT=

Solve for X.

X: 2.0769	
Sign Reversal	2 0769
	2.0102
X LEFIE KIE	

The variable X equals 2.0769. Since both sides of the equation are a symbolic solution for Y, pressing $\boxed{\blacksquare \text{LEFT}=}$ or $\boxed{\blacksquare \text{RT}=}$ will give you the numerical solution for Y.

LEFT =

≣ RT = ≣

LEFT=1.8462	
2:	2.0769
X LEFT= RT=	1.0402

462
462

The variable Y equals 1.8462.

Method 2: Using Matrices

Key in the constant vector (the right side of both equations).

CLEAR [63 ENTER]

3: 2:			
1:	[6.0000	3.0000]
X	LEFT= RT=		

Key in the coefficient matrix. The coefficients of the first equation make up the first row of the matrix. The coefficients of the second equation make up the second row. Divide the constant vector by the coefficient matrix.

[[2 1[5 -4 ÷

3:	20 L B 20 C - 20 C 20 C 20 C 20 C				
1:	C	2.076	59 1	1.846	2]
8	LEFT=	RT=			

The same results as the graphing method are obtained, X = 2.0769 and Y = 1.8462.

Clear the stack and purge all the variables that were used in this example.

CLEAR { 'X''PPAR''EQ' PURGE

Method 3: Using Solver

First, enter in the first equation and isolate the variable Y. The result is an expression for Y.

3:	
1:	'6-2 * X'
STEC RCEC SOLVR	ISOL QUAD SHOW

Enter in the second equation and store it in the variable EQ.

'5 × X-4 × Y=3'

3:	
2:	'6-2 * X'
STECH RCECH SOLVE	ISOL CUND SHOW

Display the Solver menu and store the expression for Y in the variable Y. This gives you one equation in one unknown.

Y:	'6-2*X'
2:	
1:	
X	LEFT= RT=

2.0769

LEFT= RT=

Now solve for X. The same result as the two previous methods is returned to level 1.

Put the expression for Y on the stack.

Y ENTER

3:	
2:	2.0769
1:	'6-2*X'
X LEFT= RT=	

2.0769

Convert this expression into a number.

→NUM

3: 2: 1:			2.	0769 8462
X	LEFT=	RT=		

The value for Y is returned to level 1.

Purge the variables created in this example.

{ 'X''Y''EQ' PURGE

Quadratic Equations

The zeros of a quadratic equation can be found using the QUAD command. Plotting the equation is not necessary, but you may be interested in seeing what the graph looks like and checking if there are two real roots, two complex roots, or a double root.

For example, solve $3x^2 - x = 0$. First plot the equation.



You can easily see that the equation has two real roots. Now use $\overline{\equiv \text{QUAD}} \equiv$ to find those roots. First, recall the equation and put X on the stack to indicate that this is the variable for which you are solving (the coefficients could be variables, in which case the solution is symbolic).

ATTN ERCEQ	3: 2: '3*X^2-X-2' 1: 'X' Stect (Rec: (2010) (2017)
Find the roots:	
	3:

2: 1: '(1+s1*5)/6' IMVUR ISOU CUMO STOR ORGANISKOA

The QUAD function can also be found in the SOLV menu.

The resulting expression represents both roots. "s1" is a variable whose value is either +1 or -1. Store this expression in the variable EQ and use the Solver to find the numerical solutions.

SOLV	STEQ
	٩ 🗏

3:			
1			
\$1	EXPR=		

Let s1 be negative by entering a -1 and pressing the $\overline{\equiv S1 \equiv}$ menu key.

-1 S1

s1: -1.0000
2:
1:
S1 EXPR=

Press EXPR= $\overline{=}$ to get the first root.

EXPR=

EXPR=-0.6667 2: 1: -0.6667 51 EXPR=

Let s1 be equal to +1.

1 S1

sl: 1.0000	
?:	0 ///7
1:	-0.0007
S1 EXPR=	

Solve for the second root.

EXPR=

EXPR=1.0000	
2:	-0.6667
S1 EXPR=	1.0000

Clear the stack and all the variables used in this example.

CLEAR {'s1''PPAR''EQ' PURGE

3:	
2	
11:	
STEC IRCECTISOL VR TSOL CUADIS	сном

For a second example, find the roots for $2x^2-4x+3$ in the same manner as the first example.

First store the equation in the variable EQ, then draw it.



Since the graph of this equation does not intersect the x-axis, there are no real roots; the roots are complex. Solve for these roots using the QUAD command.

ATTN] ≣ R0	CEQ 🔤
'X	SOLV	

2:	
1:	'(4+s1*
-	(0.0000,2.8284))/4'
STE	Q RCEQ SOLVE ISOL QUAD SHOW

Now use the Solver to get the numeric solutions.

Ī	STEQ
Ī	SOLVR

3:			
2:			
1:			
S1	EXPR=		

Let s1 equal -1 and solve for one of the roots.

-1 ≣S1≣

s1	-1.	4000		
2:				
51	EXPR=			

EXPR=

EXPRECT.00005,-0.7071) 2: 1: (1.0000,-0.7071) 31 EXAMP

Let s1 equal +1 and solve for the second root.

1 S1

si	1.0000
2:	(1,0000,-0,7071)
51	

EXPR=

EXP	R=(1.0000,0.7071)
2:	(1.0000,-0.7071)
1:	(1.0000,0.7071)
_S1	EXPR=

The roots for this equation are $1 \pm 0.7071i$.

Purge the variables created in this example.

{ 's1''PPAR''EQ' PURGE

Logarithms

This series of examples illustrates manipulation of numeric and algebraic expressions using logarithms.

Example: Use logarithms to evaluate the following.

$$N = \frac{3.271^* \sqrt{48.17}}{2.94^3}$$

First, enter in the equation and then take the logarithm of both sides by pressing $\overline{\equiv \text{LOG } \equiv}$.

CLEARMODE4 \blacksquare FIX'N=3.271× $\sqrt{48.17}$ ÷2.94^3'LOGS \blacksquare LOG	2: 1: 'LOG(N)=LOG(3.2710*J 48.1700/2.9400^3)' LOG ALOG IN EXP INPLEXPM
---	---

Expand the equation so that the right side of the equation is expressed as the sum or difference of several logarithms. (This involves using the fundamental laws of logarithms, but is easily accomplished using the EXPAN command.)

1: 'LOG(N)=LOG(3.2710*J 48.1700)-LOG(2.9400^ 3)' COLORI (EXISTIN) SINCE (FORTH (03503) (EXISTIN)
1: 'LOG(N)=LOG(3.2710)+ LOG(748.1700)-LOG(2.9400)*3'

Now evaluate this equation.

EVAL

3:	
1:	'LOG(N)=-0.0490'
COLCT	EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBEXSUB

Solve for N by taking the antilogarithm of both sides of the equation.

|--|

3:	
1	'N=ALOG(-0.0490)'
LOG	ALOG LN EXP LNP1 EXPM

Press EVAL to get the numerical solution.

EVAL

3: 2: 1: 'N=0.8934' Log Alog in Exp inpl expm

Example: Solve for x by using logarithms.

$$a^{2x-3}=b^x$$

2: 1:

Enter in the equation and take the logarithm of both sides.

 $\boxed{\begin{array}{c} CLEAR \\ \mathbf{A}^{(2\times X-3)} = B^{X} \\ \end{array}}$

Expand the equation.

ALGEBRA EXPAN

2: 1:	_LOG(A)*(2*X-3)=LOG(
COL	B)*X' T Expan Size Form Obsub Exsub

LOG ALOG LN EXP LNP1 EXPM

A^(2*X-3))=LOG(

EXPAN

2:	'LOG(A)*(2*X)-LOG(A)
1:	*3=LOC(B)*X'
COL	CT EXPAN SIZE FORM OSSUS EXSUS

The object is to isolate x on the left side (or right side, if you wish) of the equation by first moving all the terms with x to the left side and all the terms with no x to the right side.

Add $3\log(A)$ to both sides of the equation. Rather than entering in this term, retrieve the term by using EXGET. First duplicate the equation.

ENTER

2:	'LOG(A)*(2*X)-LOG(A		
1:	'LOG(A)*(2*X)-LOG(A)		
*3=LUG(8/*A			
COL	CT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBEXSUB		

Enter in the position of the third multiplication sign, which, in this case, is 10. (The first position consists of 'LOG'; the variable A is in the second position, '*' is in the third position, and so on.)

Execute the EXGET command. The expression $3\log(A)$ is returned to the stack.

10 EXGET

3: 2: 1:	'LOG(A)*(2*X)-LOG(A 'LOG(A)*3'
TAYL	R ISOL QUAD SHOW OBGET EXGET

Add $3\log(A)$ to both sides of the equation and collect the terms.

+

Ξ	COLCT	≣

1:	'LOG(A)*(2*X)-LOG(A) *3+LOG(A)*3=LOG(B)*X +LOG(A)*3'
TAY	LR ISOL QUAD SHOW OBGETIEXGET
2:	
1:	'2*LOG(A)*X=LOG(B)*X +3*LOG(A)'

Now move $x \log(B)$ to the left side of the equation by subtracting it from both sides of the equation. This can be accomplished using the EXGET command.

ENTER	2: '2*LOG(A)*X=LOG(B)* 1: '2*LOG(A)*X=LOG(B)*X +3*LOG(A)' COLCE EXPANJENCE FORM COSCIDENSUS
10 EXGET	3: 2: '2*LOG(A)*X=LOG(B)* 1: 'LOG(B)*X' MYUR ESOL CUMO (STOR) (OSCH)(SYCH)
-	1: '2*LOG(A)*X-LOG(B)*X =LOG(B)*X+3*LOG(A)- LOG(B)*X' INVU3 ESOU COUNT STORE (33513)(33513)
	2: 1: '2*LOG(A)*X-LOG(B)*X =3*LOG(A)' COUCH (#370) (\$744) (COAN) (COBUS (#380)

Use the FORM editor to merge $2x \log(A)$ and $x \log(B)$ into $(2\log(A) - \log(B))x$. Press **FORM**, move the cursor to the minus sign, press **M** \rightarrow (merge right), then press **ATTN** to exit FORM and return the modified equation to the stack.

Divide $2\log(A) - \log(B)$ into both sides of the equation by first using EXGET to retrieve the subexpression.

2:

ENTER

5 EXGET

3: 2: '(2*LOG(A)-LOG(B))*... 1: '2*LOG(A)-LOG(B)' 179913 1:501 (2010) 5:021 (3:531(3:531)

COLCT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUB EXSUB

(2*LOG(A 3*LOG(A)

COLCT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUB EXSUB

000

1:	'(2*L	.0G(A)-LC	G(B))*X
		,0G(A)-LC)G <b<>=3</b<>
1697			USCH /- USCH AND

Collect the terms.

COLCT

÷

[2: 1: 'X=3/(2*LOG(A)-LOG(B))*LOG(A)'
	COLCT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUB EXSUB

The resulting equation is the solution to this example.

$$x = \frac{3\log(A)}{2\log(A) - \log(B)}$$

Example: Solve for x in the following expression.

log(x + 3) = 0.7

The goal is to isolate x, which is easily done using the isolate command ISOL. First put the equation on the stack.



Enter in the variable to be isolated X, and execute ISOL.

'X ALGEBRA

3:	
2:	2 0119
TAYLE IS	OL QUAD SHOW OBGET EXGET

The result is x = 2.0119.

Example: Find log₇36.

The HP-28C calculates logarithms to base 10 and base e (the LN function). You can write a program to calculate the logarithms to any given base using the following formula.

$$\log_a t = \frac{\log_{10} t}{\log_{10} a}$$

Key in the following program that returns the logarithm of a given number to a given base (provided the base is in level 2 and the number in level 1 of the stack).

3:						
1	*	LOG	SWAP	LOG	1	≫
LOG	AL0	G LN	EXP	LNP1	EXP	М

Store this program in the variable LBN.

'LBN' STO USER

3:		
5		
1		
LBN		

Now compute $\log_7 36$.

7 <u>ENTER</u> 36 ≣ LBN ≣



This program will calculate the logarithm to a given base of a given number.

Graphs of Algebraic Functions

This section illustrates a number of algebraic function plots including manipulation of plot parameters for enhanced representation of the function characteristics.

> 3: 2: 1:

Example: Plot the power function $y = x^{-3}$.

Store x^{-3} in the variable EQ.

CLEAR	MO	DE 4	≣ FIX ≣
'X^(·	-3)	PLOT	STEQ

Plot the expression.

PPAR PURGE DRAW

Infinite Result	

STEQ RCEQ PMIN PMAX INDEP DRAW

Version "1BB" of the HP-28C will give the error indication above, unless flag 59 is clear (59 CF ENTER) or you take steps to avoid evaluation of the function at x = 0. An error was returned because the function is infinite at x = 0. Another way to avoid this error is to change the plot minima and maxima PMIN and PMAX, such that DRAW does not evaluate the function at the point of error. Let PMIN be (-6, -1.5) and PMAX be (6,1.5).

3: 2: 1: Steck Roeck Fmin PMAX Indep Oran

Plot the expression again.



Press ATTN to return to the stack display and purge the plot parmeters that are stored in the variable PPAR.

ATTN PPAR PURGE



Example: Plot the power function $y = \pm \sqrt{x}$. Store \sqrt{x} in the variable EQ and plot the expression.

'√ X ∎STEQ≣

Ž: 1: Ister Rcer Pmin Pmax Inder Orak

≣ DRAW ≣

Non-real Result	
2:	
1:	
STEQ RCEQ PMIN PMAX INC	EPIDRAW

Again, version "1BB" of the HP-28C traps this error and interrupts the plot. This time an error is given because y is imaginary for x < 0. You could write a program that only plots the function for $x \ge 0$, but a simpler way is to take the real part of the function y. Recall the expression.

E RCEQ

3:	
1:	'X1'
STEQ R	CEQ PMIN PMAX INDEP DRAW

Take the real part of the function.

3:	
1	'RE(JX)'
R→C C→R RE	IM CONJ SIGN

If you plotted the function now, only positive values of y would be plotted. A trick to plot both positive and negative values of y at the same time is to make a copy of the function, negate the copy, and set both functions equal to each other. (They really are not equal to each other – this is just a way to plot two functions at the same time on the HP-28C.)

Duplicate the function.

ENTER

3: 2: 1:				'RE(JX)' 'RE(JX)'
R÷C	CƏR	RE	IΜ	CONJ SIGN

Negate the function.

CHS

321	:				_BE{{}X}	:
	R→C	C→R	RE	IM	CONJ STOL	3
Now set the two functions equal to each other.

= ENTER



Store this equation in EQ and plot it.

2.	
13:	
14	
1:	
STEO, R	CEQ PMIN PMAX INDEP DRAW

🗏 DRAW 🗏



ЖH

PPAR RES AXES CENTR

Purge the plot parameters for the next example.

ATTN 'PPAR PURGE

Example: Plot the exponential function $y = e^{x/2}$.

Enter in the function $\exp(x/2)$ and store it in the variable EQ. Then plot the function.

3: 2: 1:

'EXP(X÷2) STEQ



Press $\boxed{\text{ATTN}}$ to return back to the stack display. This time let the point (0,1) be the center of the display.

ATTN (0,1 CENTR



Plot the function again.

≣ DRAW ≣



Purge the plot parameters.

ATTN 'PPAR PURGE

3: 2: 1: PPAR RES AXES CENTR XM XH

Example: Plot the logarithmic function $y = xlog(x^2+2)$.

Enter in the expression and store it in EQ.

'X×LOG(X^2+2) STEQ

3: 2: 1: Stec: Reec: PMIN (Max Under Orak)

Plot the function.

DRAW



Example: Plot the polynomial function $y = x^3 + 2x^2 - 11x - 12$.

Enter in the expression and store it in the variable EQ.

'X^3+2 × X^2−11 × X−12 STEQ

3:	
2:	
1:	
STEQ	RCEQ PMIN PMAX INDEP DRAW

Plot the function.

🗏 DRAW 🗎

• .	
	•

Much of the graph is not shown on the display. To see more of the graph adjust the plot parameters by multiplying the height by 15.

ATTN 15 **≣***H**≣**

3: 2: 1:	
PPAR RES AXES CENTR XW XH	

Draw the function again.

DRAW



Purge the variables created in this example.

ATTN { 'PPAR''EQ' PURGE

Polynomial Equations

The roots of polynomial equations can be found by several methods. Graphing the polynomial enables you to estimate the roots. The estimations can then be used as guesses for the Solver or for the ROOT command. An alternative to graphing the polynomial to obtain the "guesses" is using $\pm p/q$ where the values of p are the positive divisors of the constant term and the values of q are the positive divisors of the coefficient of the highest-powered term. In most cases it is easier and quicker to graph the polynomial to find the approximate roots.

Example: Plot the graph and find the roots of

$$x^4 + 3x^3 - 3x^2 - 7x + 6 = 0$$

First, clear the display and any current plot parameters. Then, enter in the expression, store it in the variable EQ, and plot it.

CLEAR' PPARPURGE' $X^4 + 3 \times X^3 - 3 \times X^2 - 7 \times X + 6$ PLOT \blacksquare STEQ \blacksquare DRAW



Multiply the height by 10 and plot the graph again.

ATTN 10 *H



Digitize the three points where the function equals zero (i.e., where the graph intersects or touches the x-axis) by moving the cross hairs to each of the three points and pressing $\boxed{\text{INS}}$. When you press the $\boxed{\text{ATTN}}$ key, the coordinates of the three points are displayed. The x coordinate of each point will be used as initial estimates for the Solver.

3:	(-3.0000,0.0000)
2:	(-2.0000,0.0000)
1:	(1.0000,0.0000)
STEQ	RCEQ PMIN PMAX INDEP DRAW

Now use these values in the Solver.

SOLV SOLVR

3: 2:	(-3.0000,0.0000) (-2.0000,0.0000)
1:	(1.0000,0.0000)
X	EXPR=

Store the point in level 1 in the variable X.

≣x≣

X∎

Now solve for X. The result is shown in level 1.

Clear this result and find the next root.

DROP			
≣x≣	≣x	_	

Clear this result and find the last root.

DROP]	
ĪΧ≣		X

The three roots are -3, -2, and 1.

Example: Plot the graph and find one of the roots of

 $x^3 - 3x^2 - 1.5x + 6 = 0$

For this example you will again plot the function to get the initial guesses and then use the ROOT command to find the roots. First, enter in the expression and store it in the variable EQ.

> 3: 2: 1:

CLEAR 'X^3-3 \times X^2-1.5 \times X+6 PLOT \equiv STEQ \equiv



≣ DRAW ≣

A2.0000	
Zero	
11:	-2.0000
X EXPR=	

TeleTeleTe

1.0000

X: -3.0000	
Zero 1:	-3,000
X EXPR=	



STEQ RCEQ PMIN PMAX INDEP DRAW

X	-3.0000	

X:	(1.0000,0.0000)
2:	(-3.0000,0.0000)
1:	(-2.0000,0.0000)
8	EXPR=

х:

1.0000

EXPR=

Since the plotting parameters from example 1 were not purged, the height is still multiplied by 10. Decrease the vertical scale by multiplying the height by .5.

A	TT	Ν		
•	5	Ī	*H	Ξ



Draw the graph again. Use the cross hairs and the **INS** key to digitize the left-most point that crosses the x-axis.

DRA	W			
<	• •	•	<	INS



The ROOT command requires three inputs, in this case, the polynomial expression, the name of the variable you're solving for, and the initial guess. The polynomial is in level 3, the name is in level 2, and the guess is in level 1. The digitized guess is in level 1 after the **INS** key above. Now recall the expression.

ATTN RCEQ

2:	(-1.4000,0.0000) 'X^3-3*X^2-1.5000*X+
STE	6 ' RCEQ PMIN PMAX INDEP ORAW

Put the variable name X on the stack.

'X ENTER

3:	(-1.4000,0.0000)
2:	'X^3-3*X^2-1.5000*X
1:	'X'
STEO	<u>2 [RCEQ [PMIN]PMAX [INDEP]DRAW</u>

To move the coordinates for the initial guess to level 1, rotate the stack.

	STACK	≣ ROT ≣
--	-------	---------

3:	'X^3-3*X^2-1.5000*X
2:	
1.	(-1.4000,0.0000)
DUP	OVER DUP2 DROP2 ROT LIST

Now solve for X and find one of the roots of the equation.

SOLV BROOT

3:	
1:	-1.3580
ROOT	

Purge the variables used in these two examples.

{ 'X''PPAR''EQ PURGE

40 Polynomial Equations

Determinants of Matrices

The HP-28C does calculations using matrices whose elements are real and/or complex numbers. The determinant of a matrix is easily found by using the command DET. But since DET is a command, it cannot be used in algebraics.

Example: Find the determinant of the following matrix.

Key in the matrix and find the determinant.

CLEAR MODE 2 Image: Fix [[2 6 1 -2 -3 4 5 7 [4 -2 1 3 [5 3 -4 6 ENTER	1: [[2.00 6.00 1.00 [-3.00 4.00 5.00 [4.00 -2.00 1.00 STO [FIX] SCT ENG DEG [RAD]
	3: 2: 1: 2439.00 0:0055 001 001 015 015 01000

Example: Solve for x and y.

7	6	5		x	2	y	
1	2	1	=0 and	2	3	4	=2
y y	-2	x		1	5	7	

Using the definition of the determinant of a 3×3 matrix, these two equations can also be written as the following:

14x + 6y - 10 - (10y - 14 + 6x) = 0 and 21x + 8 + 10y - (3y + 20x + 28) = 2

The problem reduces to a system of two equations in two unknowns. To find y, isolate x in one of the equations, then substitute this expression for x in the other equation. To find x, substitute the value for y in the expression for x.

First, key in one of the equations and simplify it by collecting terms.

CLEAR '14×X+6×Y-10-(10×Y-14 +6×X)=0 ALGEBRA ≣COLCT≣

3:	
2:	
1:	'4+8*X-4*Y=0'
COLCT	EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBEXSUE

Store this equation in the variable EQ.

SOLV STEQ



Key in the other equation and simplify it also.

'21×X+8	+10×Y-($3 \times Y + 20 \times X$
+28)=2	ALGEBRA	

3:	
2:	
1:	'-20+X+7*Y=2'
COLCT EX	PAN SIZE FORM OBSUBEXSUB

Obtain a symbolic expression for x by isolating the variable.

'X ≣ISOL≣

3:	
2:	
1:	'2-7*Y+20'
TAYLR	ISOL QUAD SHOW OBGET EXGET

Use the Solver to substitute the expression for x in the equation that is already stored in the variable EQ and solve for y. First, display the Solver menu.

3:	
1	'2-7*Y+20' Y LEFTE RTE

Press $\underline{\exists x } \underline{\exists}$. The expression from level 1 is stored in the variable X. Notice that the variable X disappears from the Solver menu.

≣x≣

X:	'2-7*Y+20'
2:	
1:	
Ϋ́	LEFI= KI=

Now solve for y.

ĬY≣

Y: 3.00	
Zero	0.00
1:	3.00
Y LEFTE RTE	

Recall the expression for x.

X ENTER

3: 2:	3.00
1:	'2-7*Y+20'
Y LEFT= RT=	

Find the numerical value for x by evaluating the expression.

EVAL

3:	
2:	3.0000
1:	1.0000
Y LEFT= RT=	

Thus x = 1 and y = 3.

Purge the variables created in this example.

{ 'Y''X''EQ PURGE

Systems of Linear Equations

Using matrices, solve the following system.

 $\begin{cases} 6x + 1y - 3z + 0w = 37 \\ -2x + 3y + 5z - 7w = 6 \\ 8x + 0y + 4z - 5w = 75 \\ 0x - 7y - 4z + 1w = 7 \end{cases}$

A similar example is shown in the HP-28C Getting Started Manual on pages 168-170.

Clear the display, set the display mode, and key in the constant vector.

 CLEAR
 MODE
 1
 Image: Fix
 <t

3: 2:								
1:	Γ	37	.0	6.	0	75	5.0	7.0
STO]	FIX] 50	ΞI	ΕN	G	DEG	[RAD]

Key in the coefficient matrix and divide the constant vector by the coefficient matrix.

 $\begin{bmatrix} [6 \ 1 \ -3 \ 0 \] -2 \ 3 \ 5 \ -7 \\ [8 \ 0 \ 4 \ -5 \] 0 \ -7 \ -4 \ 1 \ \div \end{bmatrix}$

3:			
1: [7	7.0 -2.0	1.0 -3.	Ø
Sto [7	IX]SCI E	Ng Deg (Ri	10]

The solution to the system is x = 7, y = -2, z = 1, and w = -3.

Infinite Sequences and Series

Calculations involving infinite sequences and series are best solved by writing programs. By using FOR loops in programs, calculations can be repeated as many times as desired.

Example: Find the first 10 terms of the sequence whose general term is the following.

 $\frac{x!}{e^x}$ A general program that calculates any number of terms for this sequence is listed below. Enter in the program and store it in the variable *FDE* (for 'factorial divided by exponent'). To run the program press USER and then press the user variable key $\overline{\equiv}$ FDE $\overline{\equiv}$. When you run the program, a prompt is displayed that asks for the number of terms you want calculated. Enter a number, such as 10, press \Box CONT to continue running the program. The program returns a list of the first 10 numbers in the sequence.

Program Listing:	Explanation:
2 FIX	Set the display format to two digits.
# OF TERMS?" CLLCD 1 DISP	Prompt message.
HALT	Program halts (you key in a
	number and press CONT).
→ n «	The number is stored in the variable <i>n</i> .
1 n FOR X	Loop: do for X from 1 to n.
X FACT	Calculate the factorial of X.
X EXP	Take the exponent of X
÷	and divide the two numbers.
NEXT	Increment X and repeat until $X > n$.
n →LIST	Put the <i>n</i> terms into a list.

Now key in the program.

CLEAR



"# OF TERMS?" CLLCD 1.0 DISP HALT → n « 1.0 n FOR X X FACT

2

1:

Store the program in the variable FDE.

'FDE STO

4	
4:	
<u>.</u>	
3:	
Ō.	
21	
1.	
11.	

Run the program.

# 0F	TERMS?
------	--------

Enter in the number 10 and press CONT to continue running the program. The list of the first 10 terms of the sequence is displayed.

10 CONT

1: { 0.37 0.27 0.30 0.44 0.81 1.78 4.60 13.53 44.78 164.75)

Run the program again.

FDE

OF TERMS?

Enter in the number 5 (or any other integer) and continue running the program.

5 CONT

2: 1:	{ { Ø,	0.3 0.3 44	37 37 0.	0.2 0.2 81	7 0	0.30 0.30	0
FD	Ε						

Example: Find the sum of the first 100 terms of the series

 $\sum_{x=1}^{x=n} \frac{1}{x(x+1)}$ where n is the total number of terms.

The program that finds the sum of the first n terms is listed below. When this program is run, a prompt asking for the number of terms is displayed. After entering in the number and continuing the program, the prompt message and the number n is displayed in level 2 and the sum of the first n terms is in level 1.

Program Listing:	Explanation:
STD	Standard display format.
CLLCD "# OF TERMS? "	Prompt message.
DUP 1 DISP	Make a copy and display and line 1.
HALT	Program halts
	(you key in a number).
→ n «	Store one copy of the number in n .
n →STR +	Convert the number into a string and concatenate with the prompt.
0 1 n FOR X	Loop: do for X from 1 to n with
	initial zero sum.
'INV((X × (X + 1))' EVAL	1/((X)(X+1)).
+	Add to the accumlating total.
NEXT	Increment X and repeat until $X > n$.
CLLCD DUP 3 DISP SWAP 1 DISP »	Generate final display.

Key in the program.

CLEAR « STD CLLCD "# OF TERMS?" DUP 1 DISP HALT \rightarrow n « n \rightarrow STR + 0 1 n FOR X 'INV((X × (X+1))' EVAL + NEXT CLLCD DUP 3 DISP SWAP 1 DISP » ENTER <>



Store the program in the variable 'ONE' (the series converges to one for large n).

'ONE STO

A •		
3.		
3:		
-		
1.		

Run the program.

OF TERMS?

Enter in the number 100 and continue running the program. The sum of the first 100 terms is returned to level 1.

100 CONT

OF TERMS?100 .990099009897

Purge the two programs created in these examples.

{ 'ONE''FDE' PURGE

Hyperbolic and Inverse Hyperbolic Functions

The LOGS menu contains hyperbolic and inverse hyperbolic functions. The arguments to these functions can be either numeric or symbolic.

Example: Given $Z = 4/\sqrt{7}$, find sinh Z, csch Z, cosh Z, sech Z, tanh Z, and coth Z.

Clear the display and set the number of display digits to 3.

CLEAR MODE 3	EIX	3:
		1:
		STD [FIX] SCI ENG DEG [RAD]

Calculate $4/\sqrt{7}$ and store it in the variable Z.

4 ENTER 7 √	3: 2: 4,000 1: 2.646 STD [FIX] SCI ENG DEG [RAD]
÷	3: 2: 1: 1.512 STD [FIX] SCI ENG DEG [RAD]
'Z STO	3: 2: 1: STO (FIX) SCI ENG DEG [RAD]

Calculate $\sinh Z$.

3:					
1				2	.157
SINH	ASINH	COSH	ACOSH	TANH	ATANH

Calculate $\operatorname{csch} Z$. The $\operatorname{csch} Z$ is equal to the inverse of $\sinh Z$.

1/x

3:	
1	0.464
SINH ASINH COS	H ACOSH TANK ATANK

Calculate $\cosh Z$.

Z COSH

3:	
ž	0.464
1:	2.378
SINH ASINH C	OSH ACOSH TANH ATANH

Calculate sech Z. The sech Z is equal to the inverse of $\cosh Z$.

1/x

3:	
Ž:	Ø. 464
1.	ă 421
STAN INSTANT COSH	

Calculate $\tanh Z$.

Z TANH

3:	0.464
2:	0.421
1:	0.907
SINH ASINH COSH	ACOSH TANK ATANK

Calculate $\operatorname{coth} Z$. The $\operatorname{coth} Z$ is equal to the inverse of $\tanh Z$.

1/x

3:	0.464
5.	ă 421
	9.761
1:	1.102
SINH ASINH (OSH ACOSH TANH ATANH

Example: Verify that acosh(2.378) = 1.512 using the definition

 $\operatorname{acosh}(x) = \ln(x + \sqrt{x^2 - 1}), \text{ for } x \ge 1.$

Key in the equation for the definition and store it in the variable EQ.

CLEAR'ACOSH(X) = LN(X+ $\sqrt{(X^2 - 1)})$ 'SOLV

3:	
2:	
1:	
STEC	RCEQ SOLVR ISOL QUAD SHOW

Display the Solver menu, key in the number 2.378 and assign it to the variable X.

SOLVR 2.378 X

Χ:	2.378
2:	
1:	
X	LEFT= RT=

Now check if the left side of the equation $a\cosh(x)$ equals 1.512.

LEFT =

11411811512	
2:	1 512
X LEFT= RT=	

Now check if the right side of the equation is 1.512.

≣ RT= ≣

RIGHT=1.512	
2:	1.512
1:	1.512
X LEFT= RT=	

Purge the variables used in these examples.

{ 'X''EQ''Z' PURGE

Trigonometric Relations and Identities

This section illustrates calculations involving simple trigonometric relations and identities.

Example: Given $\cot(x) = 0.75$, find $\tan(x)$, $\sec(x)$, $\cos(x)$, $\sin(x)$, and $\csc(x)$ without solving for x.

3: 2: 1:

Set degrees mode and the number of display digits to FIX 5.

CLEAR MODE DEG

Add 1 to the square of tan(x).

Enter in the number .75, which is equal to $\cot(x)$.

.75 ENTER

3:	
1:	0.75000
STD [FIX	SCI ENG [DEG] RAD

STO { FIX] SCI ENG [DEG] RAD

Take the inverse to calculate tan(x), since tan(x) = 1/cot(x).

1/x

	2
Calculate sec(x) using the relation $sec(x) = \sqrt{\tan^2(x)} + 1$. First, calculate	
the square of $tan(x)$.	

3: 2: 1:

x²

3:	
2:	
1:	1.77778
STD [FIX] SCI	ENG [DEG] RAD

1 CCT LENG

1.33333

3:	
1:	2.77778
STD [FIX] SCI	ENG [DEG] RAD

Take the square root of the number to calculate sec(x).

 \checkmark

1 [+]

3:	
1	1.66667
STD [FIX] SCI ENG [DEG] RAD

Calculate cos(x) by taking the inverse of sec(x).

1/x

3: 2: 1: 0.60000 STD [FIX] SCI ENG [DEG] RAD

Calculate sin(x) by using the relation $sin(x) = \sqrt{1 - cos^2(x)}$. First, calculate the square of cos(x).

x²

3:	
2: 1:	0.36000
STO [FIX] SCI	ENG [DEG] RAD

Enter in the number 1 and switch the order of the 1 and the square of cos(x).

1 SWAP

3:	
Ž	1,00000
1	Å . 36000
STO FEEX 1 STO	EVIC DEG 1 800
CALCEL / All J CASE	

Subtract the square of $\cos(x)$ from 1.

-

3:	
1	0.64000
STD [FIX] SCI	ENG [DEG] RAD

Take the square root of this number to calculate sin(x).

\checkmark

3:	
1	0.80000
STD [FIX] SCI	ENG [DEG] RAD

Take the inverse of sin(x) to calculate csc(x).

1/x

3:	
1	1.25000
STD [FIX] SC	I ENG [DEG] RAD

Clear the stack.

DROP

3:
2:
1:
STD [FIX] SCI ENG [DEG] RAD

Example: Plot the unit circle $\sin^2(x) + \cos^2(x) = 1$.

The program to plot the unit circle is listed below.

Program Listing:	Explanation:
DEG	Set the angle mode to degrees.
CLLCD DRAX	Clear the display and draw the axes.
0 360 FOR X	Loop: do for X from 0 to 360 degrees.
X SIN	Calculate $sin(X)$.
X COS	Calculate $\cos(X)$.
R→C	Form a coordinate pair $(\sin(X), \cos(X))$.
PIXEL	Plot the point.
5 STEP	Increment X by 5 and repeat until $X > 360$.

Key in the program.

MODE STD

« DEG CLLCD DRAX 0 360
FOR X X SIN X COS
R→C PIXEL 5 STEP
» ENTER <>>





EVAL



Trigonometric Functions for One and Two Angles

Trigonometric relations, such as the law of cosines or the identity for the cosine of the sum of two angles, are not built into the HP-28C. However, the algebraic formula for the relations can be stored in a variable. Then by using the Solver, you can solve for any unknown in the formula.

Example: Given an oblique triangle XYZ with the following parameters

$$x=3n$$

$$y=n^{2}-1$$

$$z=20$$

$$Z=94.9 \text{ degrees},$$

where n is a positive integer, solve for n and then find sides x and y and angles X and Y.

First, set the number of display digits to 2 and select the degree mode.

CLEAR	3:
	2:
	STD [FIX] SCI ENG [DEG] RAD

Normally, capital letters denote the angles of the triangle and lower case letters denote the corresponding opposite sides. Since capital and lower case letters are indistinguishable in the Solver and User menus, let X, Y, and Z be called ANGX, ANGY, and ANGZ, respectively. Also, let n, x, y, and z be represented by capital letters.

Enter '3*N' and the variable X.

'3×N''X' ENTER

3:	
2:	'3*N'
1:	יאי
STO FIX 1 SC	ENG DEG 1 830

Enter 'N²-1' and the variable Y.

'N^2-1''Y' ENTER

3:	יצי
2:	'N^2-ï'
1:	ייץי ־ יי
STD [FIX] SCI	ENG [DEG] RAD

Enter the number 20 and the variable Z.

20'Z' ENTER

3: 2:	20,00
STO [FIX] SCI	ENG (DEG) RAD

Store the numbers in the variables X, Y, and Z.

STO	
STO	
STO	

3:			
2:			
1:			
STD [FIX	SCI	ENG [D	EG) RAD

Store the number 94.9 in the variable ANGZ.

```
94.9'ANGZ' STO
```

3:		
1		
STD [FIX] 50	I ENG [DEG] R	AD

You can solve for N by using the law of cosines and the Solver. Enter in the formula for the law of cosines and store it in EQ. (Note: since capital and lower case letters are indistinguishable in the Solver menu, let the angle variable be ANGA rather than A.) Display the Solver menu.

' A^2=B^2+C^2-2×B×C×			
COS (ANGA) '	SOLV	STEQ	



Store the value of the variable Z in the variable A (Note: Only press \mathbb{Z}). If you included single quotes, then the letter Z would be stored in the variable A.)

H	20.	Ыß	1	
2:				
Ĥ	B		C	ANGA LEFT= RT=

Store the value of the variable X in the variable B. (Notice that the Solver menu changes – the variable B is replaced by the variable N.)

Х ВВ

в:	'3*N'	
2:		
Ĥ	N	ANGA LEFT= RT=

Store the value of the variable Y in the variable C.

Y C

C: 'N^2-1' 2: 1: A N ANGA LEFT= RT=

Store the value of the variable ANGZ in the variable ANGA.

ANGZ ANGA

ANGA: 94.90 2: 1: A N | ANGA | LEFT= | RT= |

Since N is a positive integer, let the number 1 be an initial guess for N.

1 **N**

N:	1.00
2:	
1:	
Ĥ	N ANGA LEFT= RT=

Solve for N.

N: 4.00 Sign Reversal 1: 4.00 A N ANGA LEFTE RTE

Display all digits of the computed result.

MODE STD

3:	
1	4.00074339952
[STD] [218	SCI ENG [DEG] RAD

Since N is defined to be a positive integer, store the integer 4 in the variable N.

2	≣ FIX		DROP
SC	DLV	S	OLVR≣
4	≣N≣		

N: 4.00	
2:	
1:	4.00
A N ANGA LEFT= RT=	

Solve for side X by pressing $\overline{\equiv} X \overline{\equiv}$ and then \overline{EVAL} . The same result can be obtained by pressing the letter \overline{X} followed by \overline{EVAL} .

	3:	
EVAL	1: ANG2 X Y	12.00

Solve for side Y by pressing $\overline{\equiv} Y \overline{\equiv}$ followed by EVAL.

Y∎ EVAL

Purge the variables that were used in the law of cosines formula. Clear the stack.

3: 2: 1:

3: 2:

{ 'ANGA''C''B''A' PURGE CLEAR

Use the law of cosines again to find ANGX and ANGY. First, solve for ANGX.

B C ANGA LEFT= RT= Ĥ

Store X in the variable A. Notice that '3*N' is still stored in X.

X A

SOLV SOLVR

Store Y in the variable B.

Y BB

Store Z in the variable C.

Z C

You have just substituted X, Y, and Z into the law of cosines equation giving $X^2 = Y^2 + Z^2 - 2XY \cos(ANGA)$. Find angle X by solving for ANGA.

🗏 ANGA 🗏

HNGR	36.71
Zero	06 71
1:	
NC	ANGA LEFT= RT=

C ANGA LEFT= RT=

H: 3*N

8

20.00

C ANGA LEFT= RT=





N EQ ANGZ Y Z

Х



Purge the following variables. Rather than typing the variable names, display the User menu and press [] followed by $\boxed{1} \equiv ANGA \equiv \boxed{1}$, $\boxed{1} \equiv C \equiv \boxed{1}$, and so forth.

USER { 'ANGA''C''B''A' PURGE CLEAR



Display the Solver menu again.

SOLV SOLVR



A: 'N^2-1

1

Find angle Y in a similar manner. Store Y in the variable A.

Y A

Store X in the va	ariable B.
-------------------	------------

Х В

2:	
1:	
N C ANGA LEF	T= RT=

N B C ANGA LEFT= RT=

Store Z in the variable C	tore Z	Z in the	e variable	С.
---------------------------	--------	----------	------------	----

Z C

CE	20.	99
2:		
1:		INCO I FET- DT-

The resulting equation is now $Y^2 = X^2 + Z^2 - 2XZ \cos(ANGA)$. Find ANGY by solving for ANGA.

HNGH :	48.35
Zero	10.05
1.	48.30
NC	ANGA LEFT= RT=

Purge the variables used in this example.

{ 'ANGA''C''B''A''EQ''Z''Y''X''N' PURGE

Example: Given the two right triangles shown below, and the relationships cos(A + B) = -0.5077 and 0 < x < 10, find x.

Use the following trigonometric identity.

$$\cos(A+B) = \cos(A) * \cos(B) - \sin(A) * \sin(B)$$



From the diagram, $\cos(A) = (x - 2)/5$, $\cos(B) = x/(2x + 3)$, $\sin(A) = (x - 1)/5$, and $\sin(B) = (x + 7)/(2x + 3)$.

Substituting into the identity equation that was given results in the following:

$$\cos(A+B) = \frac{x-2}{5} * \frac{x}{2x+3} - \frac{x-1}{5} * \frac{x+7}{2x+3} = -0.5077.$$

Simplifying,

$$\frac{(x-2)^*x - (x-1)^*(x+7)}{5^*(2x+3)} = -0.5077.$$

Enter in this equation.

CLEAR '((X-2)× X-(X-1)×(X+7)) ÷(5×(2× X+3))=-.5077 ENTER



Store the equation and display the Solver menu.

3:	
2	
X LEFT= RT=	

Store the initial guess of 1 in the variable X.

1 **X**

X: 1.00
2:
1:
X LEFT= RT=

Solve for X.

X: 5.00	
Zero	5.00
1.	5.00
X LEFT= RT=	

Purge the variables created in this example.

'EQ PURGE 'X PURGE

Graphs of Trigonometric Functions

This section illustrates how to plot various trigonometric functions.

Example: Plot the function $y = \sin(x)/x$.

Version "1BB" of the HP-28C will generate an error when the DRAW function evaluates the function above at x = 0. The following program checks for evaluation at zero, and avoids the error that would occur.

Program Listing:

Explanation:

CLLCD RAD

 $IFTE(X = = 0, 1, SIN(X) \div X)$

STEQ DRAW

Clear the display and set the angular mode to radians. Evaluate the function for X not zero. Store the function and draw it.

> ==0,1,SIN STEQ DRAW

Key in the program.

CLEAR

```
« CLLCD RAD
'IFTE(X==0,1,SIN(X)÷X)'
STEQ DRAW [ENTER]
```

MODE STD <>

Restore the default plot parameters, expand the width by a factor of three, and press **EVAL** to run the program.





2: 1: « CLĻCD RAD 'IFTE(X **Example:** Plot the first 10 terms of the Fourier series.

$$\sin(x) + \sin\frac{(3x)}{3} + \sin\frac{(5x)}{5} + \sin\frac{(7x)}{7} + \sin\frac{(9x)}{9} + \cdots$$

A general program can be written that plots a specified number of terms. The program below assumes you key in the desired number of terms, and then execute the program.

Program Listing:

Explanation:

CLLCD RAD

0 1 ROT 2 × FOR n n X × SIN n ÷ + 2 STEP

STEQ DRAW

Clear the display and set the mode to radians. Loop: do for n from 1 to 2N. Calculate sin(n*x)/n. Add the sine term. Increment n by 2 and repeat until n > 2N. Store the equation and draw the function.

Key in the program.

« CLLCD RAD 0 1 ROT 2 × FOR n n X × SIN n ÷ + 2 STEP STEO DRAW	1: « CLLCD RAD 0 1 ROT 2 * FOR n n X * SIN n / + 2 STEP STEQ DRAW *

Store the program in the variable SQWV. (The graph is an approximation of a square wave.) Purge any existing variable named X.



4.	
4	
12:	
2	
2:	
11.	
1.	

Display the User menu and execute the program for 10 terms.

USER 10 SQWV

 <i></i>	 	۔ بر ب	-, -
 	1		-

Run the program again, this time for 5 terms.

AT	ΤN		
5		SQWV	

·	· ·	· ·		~.	·	 ·.
~.	·	·····	,	, 'J		 <u>.</u>

Example: Plot the function $y = 2\sin(x) + \cos(3x)$. If you have the HP 82240A printer, also print the graph.

Key in the function and store it in EQ.



Purge the plot parameters and plot the function.

1	PPAR	PURGE
Ī	DRAW 🗏	



Double the height and plot the function again.

Α	TTN
2	≣ *H ≣
≣	DRAW



To print the graph on the printer, first key in the following program.

AT	TN			
~	CLLCD	DRAW	PRLCD	>>
E١	ITER			

3:				
<u>1: «</u>	CLLCD	DRAW	PRL	CD »
CLLCD	DISP PIXE	L DRAX	CLMF	PRLCD

Store the program in the variable PRPLT.

PRPLT STO

3:	
2:	
1:	
CLLCD DISP PIXEL DRAX CLMF PRL	CD

Execute the program PRPLT which draws the graph of the expression stored in EQ and then prints it.



Purge the variables used in this section.

{ 'SQWV''PPAR''EQ''PRPLT PURGE

Inverse Trigonometric Functions

The inverse trigonometric functions arc sine, arc cosine, and arc tangent are built-in to the HP-28C. To calculate arc cosecant, arc secant, and arc cotangent of a number, simply take the inverse of the number and calculate the arc sine, arc cosine, or arc tangent, respectively.

Example: Find the principal values of

a. arcsin(.5)
b. arccos(-.95)
c. arctan(-8.98)
d. arccsc(-7.66)
e. arcsec(2) and
f. arccot(2.75) in HMS format.

First set the angle mode to degrees and the display setting to FIX 5.

M	DDE		DEG 📃
5	≣ FIX	≣	

3:	
1:	
STD [FIX] SCI ENG [DEG] RAD

a. Compute arcsin(.5) in HMS format.

.5 TRIG ASIN

3:	
1:	30.00000
SIN ASIN COS	ACOS TAN ATAN

Since the angle is an integer, there is no need to convert to HMS format.

3:			
2		- -	0000
1.	-	50.0	0000
→HMS HMS→ HMS+	HMS-	a€a	R≯D

b. Compute $\arccos(-.95)$ in HMS format.

.95	CHS	ACOS	3:					
			Ž:				30.0	0000
			1:			10	61.8	0513
			SIN	ASIN	COS	ACOS	TAN	ATAN

Ξ	→H	M	S	
_				

3: 2: 1:		1	30.0 61.4	0000 8185
→HMS HMS→	iMS+	HMS-	D→R	R≯D

c. Compute $\arctan(-8.98)$ in HMS format.

8.98 CHS TAN	3: 2: 1: Sin Asin	30.00000 161.48185 -83.64580 Cos acos tan atan
≣→HMS≣	3: 2: 1:	30.00000 161.48185 -83.38449

d. Compute $\operatorname{arccsc}(-7.66)$. Note that $\operatorname{arccsc}(-7.66) = \operatorname{arcsin}(-1/7.66)$. Calculate the inverse of -7.66.

7.66 CHS 1/x

3:	161.48185
2:	-83.38449
1:	-0.13055
→HMS HMS→ HMS+	HMS- D ə r rəd

→HMS HMS→ HMS+ HMS-

Press $\overline{\equiv}$ ASIN $\overline{\equiv}$ to find $\arccos(-7.66) = \arcsin(-1/7.66)$.

≣ ASIN ≣

3:	161.48185
2:	-83.38449
1:	-7.50128
SIN ASIN COS	ACOS TAN ATAN

Convert the resulting angle to HMS format.

≣ →HMS ≣

3:	161.48185
2:	-83.38449
HMS HMSH HMS	+ HMS- D+R R+D

- e. Compute arcsec(2). First, find the inverse of 2.
- 2 1/x

3:	-83.38449
2 :	-7.30046
1:	0.50000
→HMS HMS	→ HMS+ HMS- D→R R→D

Calculate the arccosine of the number since $\operatorname{arcsec}(2) = \operatorname{arccos}(1/2)$.

ACOS

3:	-83.38449
2:	-7.30046
1:	60.00000
SIN ASIN COS	ACOS TAN ATAN

Since the resulting angle is an integer, there is no need to convert it to HMS format.

- f. Compute arccot(2.75) in HMS format.
- 2.75 1/x

3:	-7.30046
2:	60.00000
1:	0.36364
SIN ASIN COS	ACOS TAN ATAN

Calculate the arctangent of the resulting number to find arccot(2.75).

≣ ATAN ≣

3:	-7.30046
2:	60.00000
1:	19.98311
SIN ASIN COS	ACOS TAN ATAN

≣ →HMS ≣

3:	-7.30046
2 :	60.00000
1:	19.58592
→HMS HMS→ HMS	+ HMS- D+R R+D

Example: Evaluate sin(arccos(-.9) - arcsin(.6))

First, calculate $\arccos(-.9)$.

CLEAR • 9 CHS EACOSE

3:					
2:					
1:			1	54.1	5807
SIN	ASIN	COS	ACOS	TAN	ATAN

Next, calculate arcsin(.6).

.6 ASIN

3:	
2:	154.15807
1:	36.86990
SIN ASIN COS	ACOS TAN ATAN

Subtract $\arcsin(.6)$ from $\arccos(-.9)$.

-

3:	
1	117.28817
SIN ASIN CO	S ACOS TAN ATAN

Calculate the sine of the resulting number.

≣ SIN ≣

3:	
1:	0.88871
SIN ASIN COS	ACOS TAN ATAN

Trigonometric Equations

Solutions to trigonometric equations can be found by graphing the equation, by using the Solver, or both. This section demonstrates one way to solve a trigonometric equation.

Solve $\cos^2(x) + \cos(3x) - 5\sin(x) = 0, \ 0 \le x \le 2\pi$.

First, set the angle mode to radians and set the display to FIX 2.

CLEAR MODE RAD 2 FIX

Key in the expression.

'COS(X)^2+COS(3×X) -5×SIN(X)=0' ENTER





Store the equation and display the Solver menu. The menu shows X as the only variable.

SOLV STEQ

3:	
2:	
1:	
X LEFT= RT	

Let 0 be an initial estimate for X.

0 x

X: 0.00
2:
1:
8 LEFTE RTE

Solve for X.

|--|

X: 0.31	
Zero	0.01
11	0.31
X LEFT= RT=	

Try solving for X again with the number 3.14 as the initial estimate.

3.	14	≣X≣
	≣x	

X: 3.14	
Sign Reversal 1:	3.14
X LEFT= RT=	

Check your results by plotting the function.

PLOT 'PPAR PURGE



Increase the height by 5 and draw the function again.

ATTN 5



Between x = 0 and x = 6.28, the graph intersects the x-axis at approximately x = .3 and x = 3.1.

Purge the variables used in this example.

{ 'X''EQ''PPAR PURGE

Complex Numbers

Complex numbers x + iy can be represented in two ways, as an object or as an algebraic. A complex number object has the form (x,y). As an algebraic, the complex number is represented by x + iy', where x and y are real numbers and i is a constant equal to the complex number (0,1). Calculations with complex numbers are easily solved on the HP-28C.

Example: Evaluate the following expression.

$$\frac{\sin(.5+.3i)+(3-4i)^*(2+i)^{1/3}}{\ln(5-8i)-\arccos(2+9i)}.$$

First, set the display for FIX 4.

CLEAR		
MODE	4	≣ FIX ≣

3:					
ž:					
<u>-</u>					
1.					
STO [FIX	J SCI	ENG	DEG	RAD	1

Calculate sin(.5+.3i).

(.5,.3 TRIG SIN

3: 2: 1: (0.5012,0.2672) sin asin cos acos fan atan

Key in the complex number 3-4i.

(3,-4	ENTER
-------	-------

0.	
12.	
2:	(0.5012, 0.2672)
11.	/20000 \$1 0000 01
1.	(3.0000,-4.0000)
STN	ASTN COS ACOS TAN ATAN

Key in the complex number 2+i.

(2,1 ENTER

Take the inverse of the number 3.

3 1/x

3:	(0.5012,0.2672)
2:	(3.0000,-4.0000)
1:	(2.0000,1.0000)
SIN 6	ISIN COS ACOS TAN ATAN

3:	(3.0000,-4.0000)
2:	(2.0000,1.0000) 0.3333
SIN	ASIN COS ACOS TAN ATAN
Calculate the third root of 2+i.

^

Multiply the resulting complex number by 3-4i.

×

3:	
Ž:	(0.5012.0.2672)
1:	(4.6814, -4.5644)
SIN	ASIN COS ACOS TAN ATAN

Add the two numbers in levels 1 and 2. The sum is equal to the numerator.

3: 2: 1:

SIN ASIN

+

Calculate the denominator by entering it in as an algebraic expression and then converting the expression into a number.

Divide the numerator by the denominator to obtain the final result.

÷

3:				
2:	ά.	1041	2.5	049)
SIN ASIN	COS	ACOS	TAN	ATAN

Example: Verify the following definition by showing that both sides of the equation are equal for the case x = 3 and y = 4.

$$\tan(x+iy) = \frac{\sin(x)\cos(x)+i^*\sinh(y)\cosh(y)}{\sinh(y)^2+\cos(x)^2}$$

Key in the algebraic expression.

CLEAR 'TAN(x+y×i) = (SIN(x)× COS(x)+SINH(y)×COSH(y)× i)÷(SINH(y)^2+COS(x)^2)' ENTER <>







Store the equation in the variable EQ and display the Solver menu.

SOLV STEQ ≣ SOLVR ≣

Store the number 3 in the variable x.

3 X

Store the number 4 in the variable y.

4 **∐**Y**∐**

Evaluate the left-hand side of the expression.

LEFT=

Convert this expression into a number.

→NUM

Evaluate the right-hand side of the expression.

≣ RT = ≣

Convert this expression into a number to show that the right and left sides of the equation are equal.

→NUM

3: 2: 1: Y LEFT= RT=









LEFT= RT=

1:		(-0.0	002	,0.9	994)
X	Y	LEFT=	RT=		

1 'TAN(3+4*i) LEFT= RT= x

LEFT='TAN(3+4*i)

Clear the stack and purge the following variables.

CLEAR { 'Y''X''EQ PURGE

3:				
Ž:				
ī:				
STEQ.	RCEQ SO	LVR ISOL	. QUAD	SHOW

Example: Express the following complex numbers in polar notation.

a. $3-2\sqrt{3i}$ **b.** $-1/2 + \frac{\sqrt{3}}{2}i$ **c.** 3+4i

First, set the angle mode to degrees.

MODE DEG

2:				
3				
5				
1.				
STD [FI] SCI	ENG [DEG] R	AD .

- **a**. Enter in the number 3.
- 3 ENTER

3:	
2:	3,0000
STO FIX 1 SOT	ENG DEG 800

Enter in the number -2.

3:	
2:	3.0000
1:	-2.000
STD [FIX] SCI	ENG [DEG] RAD

Take the square root of the number 3.

3 🗸

×

3:	3.0000
2:	-2.0000
1:	1.7321
STD [FIX] SCI	ENG [DEG] RAD

Multiply	-2 by	the	square	root	of 3	3.
----------	-------	-----	--------	------	------	----

3:	
Ž:	3.0000
1:	-3.4641
STD [FIX] SCI	ENG [DEG] RAD

Combine the two	numbers in	levels 1	and 2 into	a complex number	r.

TRIG ≣ R→C ≣

Convert the complex number in rectangular notation to polar notation.

≣ R--+P ≣

b. Enter in the complex number $-1/2 + \frac{\sqrt{3}}{2}i$ as an algebraic expression.

3: 2: 1:

3: 2: 1:

3: 2: 1:

3 2 1

Convert the expression into a number.

CLEAR '-1÷2+√3÷2×i' →NUM

Convert the complex number from rectangular form to polar form.

≣ R→P ≣

c. Enter in the complex number 3+4i in rectangular form and take the absolute value of it. The magnitude is returned.

CLEAR (3,4 REAL ABS

Return (3,4) to the stack. (If LAST is disabled, you must re-enter (3,4)).

LAST

	HBS SIGN M
Press $\overline{\equiv}$ ARG $\overline{\equiv}$. The polar angle is return	rned.

3:					
2:				5.	0000
1:				53.	1301
P→R	R≯P	R⇒C	CƏR	ARG	

(3.0000,4)

NT SPON

3: 2: 1: (1.0000, 120.0000) PPR RPP RPC CPR MRG

ABS SIGN MANT XPON



P>R R>P R>C C>R ARG



P→R R→P R→C C→R ARG

(4.5826,-49.1066)

(-0.5000,0.8660)

5.0000

5.0000

0000

Combine the magnitude and the polar angle into a complex number.

≣R→C≣



Rectangular Coordinates

This section illustrates how to solve various problems dealing with rectangular coordinates. The object (x,y) represents either a complex number or the coordinates of a point; thus it is an acceptable argument to all of the arithmetic functions.

Example: Given triangle *ABC* with vertices A(x 1, y 1) = (-4,3), B(x 2, y 2) = (2,5), and C(x 3, y 3) = (-3, -1), find

- **a**. the length of side AC,
- **b**. the coordinates of the midpoint of side AB,
- **c**. the slope of side BC and the inclination,
- d. the area of triangle ABC, and
- e. the equivalent polar coordinates of the three points.

First, set the angle mode to degrees and the display to FIX 2.

Cl	EAR			
М	ODE	Ī	DEG	Ξ
2	FIX			



Next, enter in the coordinates of the point A and store it in the variable A.

(-4,3)'A STO USER

^.
3
Ā.
Z:
T .
11

Do the same for points B and C.

(2,5)	' B	STC	2
(-3,-	·1)'	C [STO

3: 2: 1:				
C	B	Ĥ		

a. The length of side AC is $\sqrt{(x 3 - x 1)^2 + (y 3 - y 1)^2}$. The easiest way to find the length is to subtract A from C and calculate the absolute value of the difference. (The absolute value of the complex argument (x, y) is $\sqrt{x^2+y^2}$.)

Put C on the stack.

≣C≣



Put point A on the stack.

≣A≣

2	(-3.00,-1.00)
1:	(-4.00,3.00)

Subtract point A from point C.

-

3:			
1:			(1.00,-4.00)
C	B	Ĥ	

Calculate the absolute value by pressing $\overline{\equiv} ABS \overline{\equiv}$. The resulting number is the length of side AC.

REAL ABS

b . The coordinates of the midpoint $M(x, y)$) of side AB is $x = (x + x 2)/2$
and $y = (y 1 + y 2)/2$. Thus	

M(x,y) = ((x 1+x 2)/2, (y 1+y 2)/2) = (x 1+x 2y 1+y 2)/2 = (A + B)/2.

Put the coordinates for point A on the stack.

3: 2: 1: (-4.00,3.00) C B A

Put the coordinates for point B on the stack.

B₿

3:	
2:	(-4.00,3.00)
C B A	

Add the two coordinates together. The sum is shown in level 1.

+

3 2 1			(-2.00,8.00)
C	B	Ĥ	



Divide the sum by 2 to obtain the coordinates for the midpoint.

2 ÷

c. The slope *m* of line *BC* is $m = (y_3 - y_2)/(x_3 - x_2)$. The slope is also equal to $\tan(\theta)$ where θ is the inclination. To calculate the slope, subtract *B* from *C*, separate the result, swap the order, and divide the two numbers.

3: 2: 1:

3:

First, put the coordinates for C on the stack.

CLEAR
■ C ■

Put the coordinates for B on the stack.

B≣

Calculate C - B.

-

1			<u> </u>	2.00	, 5.	ŏŏŚ
C	B	Ĥ				

(-3.00, -1.00)

(-2 00 -1 00°



Separate the coordinates.

CMPLX	≣C-→R≣
-------	--------

3:				
Ž:				-5.00
1:				-6.00
R∌C	C⇒R	RE	IM	CONJ SIGN

Swap the order of the x and y coordinates.

SWAP

3:				
2:				-6.00
1:				-5.00
R€C	CƏR	RE	IM	CONJ SIGN

Calculate the slope by dividing the y coordinate in level 2 by the x coordinate in level 1.

÷

3:	
1	1.20
R→C C→R RE 1	M CONJ SIGN

The slope is equal to 1.20.

Compute the inclination by taking the arctangent of the slope.

TRIG ATAN

d. The area of the triangle formed by the three points is the absolute value of the following:

$$\begin{array}{c} x1 \ y1 \ 1 \\ x2 \ y2 \ 1 \\ x3 \ y3 \ 1 \end{array}$$

To put the three points in a matrix, you first have to separate the coordinates and then put the number 1 on the stack for each of the three points.

> 3: 2: 1:

Separate the coordinates of point A.

CLEAR A ≣C→R≣

Complete row 1 of the matrix.

1 ENTER

3: 2: 1:				-	4.00 3.00 1.00
P→R	R⇒P	R⇒C	C≯R	ARG	

P→R R→P R→C C→R ARC

Separate the coordinates of point B and complete row 2 of the matrix.

В	≣ C-→R ≣
1	ENTER

3:	2.00
2:	5.00
1:	1.00
PƏR RƏP RƏC CƏR ARG	

3:	
1:	50.19
SIN ASIN COS	ACOS TAN ATAN

Separate the coordinates of C and complete row 3 of the matrix.

1:

- C C→R
- 1 ENTER

Put the nine numbers into a three-by-three matrix.

 $\{3,3 | ARRAY \equiv \rightarrow ARRY \equiv$

1:	0 0	-4.	00	3.0	01	.00]
	Ē	2,0	10,5	5.00	1.	90 <u>;</u>	ļ
	<u> </u>	-3.	00	-1.	00	1.00	э
⇒AR	RYAR	RYƏ	PUT	GET	PUT	I GEI	11

P→R R→P R→C C→R ARG

Compute the determinant of the matrix.

🗏 DET 🗏

3:				
2:				
1:				-26.00
CROSS	DOT	DET	ABS	RNRM CNRM

Divide the determinant by 2 and take the absolute value of the result. The area of the triangle is returned to level 1.

2	÷]
≣	ABS	

3:			
1			13.00
CROSS DOT	DET	ABS	RNRM CNRM

e. To convert the points from rectangular to polar form, simply key in the variable name and press $\overline{\equiv} R \rightarrow P \equiv$.

Key in the variable name A and convert point A to polar form.

CLEAR A TRIG ≣R→P≣

3:	
Ž:	
1:	(5.00,143.13)
P→R R	→P R→C C→R ARG

Key in the variable B and convert the point to polar form.

B ≣R→P≣

3: 2: 1:		(5	5.00	,143 9,68	.13) .20)
₽÷R	RƏP	R→C	CƏR	ARG	

Do the same for point C.

C ≣R→P≣

80

3:	(5.00,143.13)
2:	(5.39,68.20)
1:	(3.16,-161.57)
P→R	R→P R→C C→R ARG

Purge the three variables used in this example.

{CBAPURGE

Polar Coordinates

A point in a plane can be represented in rectangular notation or polar notation. To draw a point that is described in polar notation on the HP-28C, first convert it to rectangular form and then plot it. To draw the graph of a polar equation, you can either write a program to do so or convert the polar equation to rectangular form.

Example: Convert the following polar coordinates (whose angles are expressed in degrees) to rectangular coordinates and then plot the points.

$$A(4,-15) B(-4,380) C(-2,570) D(2,-195)$$

Converting polar coordinates is easily accomplished by executing the Polar-to-Rectangular function $P \rightarrow R$. One way to plot the four points is to put the four points on the stack and use the PIXEL command four times, but be sure to clear the display first by pressing $\underline{\exists CLLCD} \underline{\exists}$. You may also wish to draw the axes by executing the DRAX command. Another way to plot the points is to separate the coordinates, put them in a four-by-two matrix, and then use the statistical scatter plot commands STO Σ and DRW Σ .

To illustrate the first approach, set the angle mode to degrees and set the display to FIX 2.

CLEAR MODE DEG 2 FIX

3: 2:	
1: STD [FIX] SCI ENG [DEG]	RAD

Key in point A and convert it to rectangular coordinates.

(4,-15 TRIG **P→**R

3:	
2:	(3,86,-1,94)
P→R R→P	R→C C→R ARG

Enter in the coordinates for point B and convert it to rectangular form.

(-4,380 **P→**R

3: 2: 1:	(-	(3.8	6,-1 6,-1	.04)
P→R R→P	R→C	C→R	ARG	

Do the same for points C and D.

(-2,570 <u>P→R</u>

3:	(3.86,-1.04)
1	(-3, 76, -1, 37) (1, 73, 1, 00)
P→R	R→P R→C C→R ARG

(2, -195)	P→R	3:	(-3.76,-1.37)
		2:	(1.73,1.00) (-1.93,0.52)
		PƏR RƏP	R→C C→R ARG

The rectangular form of the four points are A (3.86, -1.04), B (-3.76, -1.37), C (1.73, 1.00), and D (-1.93, 0.52).

Clear the plot parameters, clear the display and draw the axes. Note the soft key labeled $\downarrow \downarrow$ will execute $\boxed{\blacksquare DRAX}$ after pressing $\boxed{\blacksquare CLLCD}$.

PLOT 'PPAR PURGE	
	 •

Although you can't see them, the coordinates for the four points are still on the stack. Therefore, they are still available for use.

Draw point D (which is in level 1 of the stack) by executing the PIXEL command. (Press the soft key labeled \frown .)

E PIXEL

 · . ·		

Draw points C, B, and A by executing the PIXEL command three more times.

PIXEL	
PIXEL	
PIXEL	



Press ATTN to exit from the plot display; then purge the variable PPAR.



3: 2:	
PPAR RES AXES O	ENTR XW XH

Example: Sketch the rose $r = 2sin(\theta)$ for $0 < \theta < 360$.

The following program draws the graph of a polar equation. The program assumes that the equation is in the form $r = f(\theta)$, where $f(\theta)$ is an expression with θ as the unknown variable. The input to the program is the expression $f(\theta)$.

Explanation:
Prompt message.
Program stops
(you key in the expression).
Store the expression
in the local variable r.
Drop the prompt message.
Set the angle mode to degrees.
Clear the display.
Loop: do for I from 0 to 360.
Store the current I
in the variable theta.
Evaluate the expression for r.
Put theta on the stack.
Combine r and theta.
Convert (r,theta)
to rectangular form.
Draw the point.
Increment I by 3 and
repeat until I>360.
Purge the plot parameters
and theta.

Key in the program.

« "EXPRESSION?" HALT → r « DROP DEG CLLCD 0 360 FOR I I 'theta' STO r EVAL theta $R \rightarrow C$ P→R PIXEL 3 STEP { PPAR theta } PURGE » » ENTER <>

1:	« "EXPRESSION?" HALT
	0.00 360.00 FOR I I
	Theta SIU r EVHL

Store the program in the variable PEPLT (for "polar equation plot").

PEPLT STO

4:		
3:		
2:		
1:		

Display the User menu and execute the program.

3:	
2:	
1:	"EXPRESSION?"
PEPLT	

Key in the expression '2×SIN(2×theta)' and press CONT.

'2×SIN(2×theta) CONT

X	

If you don't want to save the program, then purge 'PEPLT'.

ATTN 'PEPLT' PURGE

3: 2: 1: Droer Clush Mem

Example: Transform $r(1-\sin(\theta)) = 2$ into its rectangular form, substituting $x^2 + y^2$ for r^2 and y for $r \sin(\theta)$.

Key in the equation. Let the angle be called 'th'.

TRIG 'r×(1-SIN(th))=2 ENTER

3: 2: 1: 'r*(1-SIN(th))=2' SIN ASIN COS ACOS TAN ATAN

Display the Algebra menu. Expand the equation to get $r - r\sin(\theta) = 2$.

ALGEBRA EXPAN

3:	
	'r*1-r*SIN(th)=2' EXEMN SIZE FORM OBSUBEKSUB

Add $r\sin(\theta)$ to both sides of the equation. To do this, press the ENTER key to duplicate the expanded equation.

ENTER

3: 2: 1:	'r*1-r*SIN(th)=2' 'r*1-r*SIN(th)=2'
COLCT	XPAN SIZE FORM OBSUB EXSUB

Next, enter the number 6 and press $\overline{\equiv \text{EXGET}}$. The subexpression $r\sin(\theta)$ is returned.

3: 2: 1:

3: 2: 1:

6 EXGET

Then, add this subexpression to the expression in level 2.

+

Simplify the expression.

Square both sides of the equation. The equation $r^2 = (2 + r \sin(\theta))^2$ is returned to level 1.

x²

Now you can substitute x^2+y^2 for r^2 and y for $r \sin(\theta)$. The Expression Substitute command EXSUB can accomplish this task.

Since SQ(r) is in the first position of the equation, put the number 1 on the stack.

1 ENTER

Enter in 'X²+ Y²' and press \equiv EXSUB \equiv .

X^2+Y^2 EXSUB

COLCI	EXPHN SIZ	E [FORM]O	ESUEJEXSUE
10.			

2+Y^2=SQ(2+SIN(th)' NN 512E FORM 03508[84508

COLCT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBE	XSUB
nation $r^2 = (2 + r \sin(\theta))^2$ is	

'r=2+SIN(th)*r

2: 1: 'SQ(r)=SQ(2+SIN(th)* r)' COLCTERFAN STRE FORM OBSUBERSUS

2: 1: 'r*1-r*SIN(th)+r*SI (th)=2+r*SIN(th)'	N.

TAYLR ISOL QUAD SHOW OBGET EXGET

*SIN(th

The subexpression 'SIN(th)*r' is in the fourteenth position, therefore key in the number 14.

14 ENTER

3:	
2:	'X^2+Y^2=SQ(2+SIN(t
1:	14.00
COL	CT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUB EXSUB

Substitute 'Y' for 'SIN(th)*r'.

Y EXSUB

3:	
2:	
1:	'X^2+Y^2=SQ(2+Y)'
COLCI	EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBEXSUB

To simplify this equation, subtract SQ(2+Y) from both sides of the equation, expand the equation, and then collect terms.

First, duplicate the equation by pressing the ENTER key.

ENTER

3:	
2:	'X^2+Y^2=SQ(2+Y)'
11:	'X^2+Y^2=SQ(2+Y)'
COLCT	EXPAN STZE FORM DESUB EXSUB

Enter the number 9 and press $\overline{\equiv \text{EXGET}}$. The subexpression 'SQ(2+Y)' is returned to level 1.

3: 2: 1:

3: 2: 1:

TAYLR

TAYLE ISOL QUAD SHOL

9 EXGET

Subtract 'SQ(2+Y)' from both sides of the equation.

-

Expand the equation.

🗏 EXPAN 🗏

2:	'X*X+Y*Y-(2^2+2*2*Y+
1:	Y^2)=0'
COL	CT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUB EXSUB

'X^2+Y^2-SQ(2+Y)=0'

ISOL QUAD SHOW OBGET EXGET

Simplify the equation by collecting terms.

COLCT

2:	'-4+X^2+Y^2-Y^2-4*Y=
1:	0'
COL	CT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUB EXSUB

Collect terms.



The final result is the equation of a parabola.

The Straight Line

This section includes some basic analytic geometry problems for the straight line and methods to solve them on the HP-28C.

Example: Given the line passing through points A(8, -10) and B(-10, 26), find

a. the y-intercept and slope of the line, and **b.** the corresponding value for y, given x = -4.

First, set the display to FIX 2.

CLEAR		
MODE	2	FIX

3:
2:
1:
STD [FIX] SCI ENG [DEG] RAD

The solutions to this example can all be found by using the commands in the Statistics menu. Since statistical data points are entered in as arrays, use brackets around the coordinates instead of parentheses.

Key in point A and press $\overline{\Xi \Sigma + \Xi}$. The matrix ΣDAT is created with point A as the first entry in the matrix.

STAT [8,-10 ΞΣ+Ξ 3: 2: 1: 2• 2- NE CLE STOE RCLE

Add point B to the matrix.

[-10,26 <u>Σ+</u>

3: 2: 1:					
Σ+	Σ-	NΣ	CLΣ	STOX	RCLX

a. Find the y-intercept and the slope by executing the Linear Regression function LR. The y-intercept is returned to level 2 and the slope to level 1.

≣ LR ≣

3:	
2:	6.00
1:	-2.00
COLZ CORR COV	LR PREDV

b. To find the corresponding value for y given x = -4, enter in the number -4 and compute the predicted value. The value for y is returned to level 1.

-4 PREDV

3:	6.00
2:	-2.00
1:	14.00
COLX CORR COV	LR PREDV

Clear the display and purge the variables that were created in this example.

CLEAR { $\Sigma PAR' \Sigma DAT'$ PURGE

Example: Given the vertices D(-4,3), E(2,5), and F(-3,-1) of triangle *DEF*, find

a. the equation of lines DE and DF in the normal form and **b**. the equation of the bisector of angle D.

a. Given two points $(x \ 1, y \ 1)$ and $(x \ 2, y \ 2)$, the normal form of the equation of the line connecting the two points is $s^* (Ax + By + C)/(\sqrt{A^2 + B^2}) = 0$, where $s = \{-1 \text{ or } 1\}$, $A = y \ 1 - y \ 2$, $B = x \ 2 - x \ 1$, and $C = x \ 1^*y \ 2 - x \ 2^*y \ 1$.

If C > 0, then s = -1. If C < 0, then s = 1. If C = 0 and B is non-zero, then the sign of s agrees with the sign of B. If C = B = 0, then the sign of s agrees with the sign of A.

First, store 'Y1 – Y2' in the variable A.

Y1-Y2''A STO USER



Store 'X2-X1' in the variable B.

'X2-X1''B STO

~ .	
131	
X.	
2:	
7.	
110	
	_

Store 'X1×Y2-X2×Y1' in the variable C.

'X1×Y2-X2×Y1''C STO



The Straight Line

Y1 | Y2

Key in the normal form of the equation.

 $S \times (A \times X + B \times Y + C) \div$ √(A^2+B^2) ' ENTER

Store the equation in the variable EQ and display the Solver menu. A menu of the variables is shown in the display.

2:

3 2 1

X1: -4.00

Y2: 5.00

2 1

1:

Y1 Y2

s

SOLV STEQ SOLVR

Find the equation for line DE. Let point D be the first point and E be the second. First, enter the coordinate -4 and press the $\overline{\equiv x_1 \equiv}$ soft key.

-4 X1

Enter in the number 3 and store it in Y1.

3 Y1

Enter in a 2 and store it in X2.

2 X2

Enter in a 5 and store it in the variable Y2.

5 Y2

Determine	the	sign	of	the	variable	S.
		~	-			~ •

ENTER С

3:	 	 	

Y1 Y2 X X2 X1

'X1*Y2-X2*Y1'

91

Y1:	3.4	11/1			
2:					
1:					
S	¥1	57	X	2X	X1





'S*(A*X+B*Y+C)/J(A^2

Y1 Y2 X X2 X1

X

82



Evaluate C.

EVAL



The value of C is returned to level 1 and it is negative. Drop the value of C from the stack.

DROP

3: 2:					
1:	Y1	72	X	5%	81

Y1 Y2 X X2 X1

S: 1.00

Since C is negative, S is equal to 1. Enter the number 1 into the variable *S* .

1 **s**

Display the resulting expression.

EXPR=

Evaluate the expression by pressing EVAL. The left side of the normal form of the equation of line DE is returned to level 1. (The right side is equal to zero.)

EVAL



Now find the equation for line DF.

Store the coordinate -3 in the variable X2.

-3 X2

X28 -8 1: '(-(2 6.32'	88 (*X)-	⊦6¥Y	-26)	/
S Y1	75	X	2%	81



93

Store the coordinate -1 in the variable Y2.

-1 Y2

Press C followed by the ENTER key.

C ENTER

Evaluate C.

EVAL

C is positive. Drop the value of C from the stack

DROP

Since C > 0, then S = -1. Enter in a -1 and press $\overline{\equiv S}$

-1 s

Display the resulting expression.

EXPR=

Evaluate the expression to obtain the normal form of the equation of line DF. This is also only the left side of the equation; the right side is equal to zero.

3: 2: 1:

2:

EVAL

nd press S	_ .		

6*Y-26)/







S	¥1	72	X	X5	X1	
e stac	k.					

'(-(2*X)+6*Y-26)/

3: 2: '(-(2*X)+6*Y-26)/6... 1: 13.00 **b**. To find the equation of the bisector of angle D simply equate the two expressions in levels 1 and 2 and simplify. To simplify this process even more, subtract the two expressions and equate the difference to zero.



Key in the number 0 and set the expression in level 2 equal to the number in level 1.

0	ENTER
=	ENTER

-

Expand the equation.

ALGEBRA

1:	'(-(2*X)+ 6.32+(4*X =0'	6*Y-26)/ +Y+13)/4.	. 12
Y	EXPR=		
1:	'(-(2*X)+	6*Y)/6.3	2-
	26/6.32+((4*X+Y)/	
	4 12+13/4	127=0	
COL	CT EXPAN SIZE	FORM [OBSURE	SUB

Expand it again.

EXPAN

1:	'-(2*X)/6.32+6*Y/
	6.32-26/6.32+(4*X/
	4.12+Y/4.12+13/4.12)
COL	CT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBEXSUB

Simplify the equation by collecting terms. The final result is the equation of the bisector of angle D.

COLCT

2: 1:	'-0.96+0.65*X+1.19*Y
608	T EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBEXSUE

Purge the variables used in this example.

{ 'S''Y2''X2''Y1''X1''EQ''C''B''A' PURGE

The Circle

Finding the points of intersection of two equations is a common problem in analytic geometry. In this section you'll work through the steps to find the points of intersection of two circles.

Example: Given two circles $x^2+y^2-5=0$ and $(x+2)^2+(y-1)^2-20=0$, find the point(s) of intersection, if any exists.

First, set the display to FIX 2.



Key in the expression for the second circle as shown below and simplify it by expansion and collection of terms.

2:	
1:	'X^2+2*X*2+2^2+(Y^2-
1	2*Y*1+1^2)-20
COL	CT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUB EXSUB

Expand again.

🗏 EXPAN 🗏

2:	'X*X+2*X*2+2*2+(Y*Y-
1:	2*Y*1+1*1)-20'
COLO	T EXPAN STZE FORM OBSUBEXSUE

Simplify the expression by collecting terms.

2: 1:	-15+X^2+Y^2+4*X-2*Y
COLO	T EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBEXSUE

Key in the expression for the first circle as shown below and press ENTER.

'X^2+Y^2-5 ENTER

3 2	'-15+X^2+Y^2+4*X-2**
	TEXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBERSUB

Find the equation for the radical axis by subtracting the expression in level 1 from the expression in level 2.

-

Expand the expression.

EXPAN

2: 1: '-15+X*X+Y*Y+4*X-2*Y -(X*X+Y*Y-5)'

COLCT EXPAN SIZE FORM OBSUBEXS

Simplify the expression by collecting terms. The result is the left side of the equation for the radical axis. (The right side is equal to zero.)

To find the point(s) where the two circles intersect, simultaneously solve the equation for the radical axis and either one of the equations for the circles. In this example, take the equation for the radical axis and solve for the variable Y. Then substitute the resulting expression for Y in the equation for the first circle. This gives an equation with one unknown, namely, X. Solve for X and then find the corresponding value(s) for Y.

> 3: 2: 1:

Solve for the variable Y.

Store this expression in the variable Y.

Y STO

10 ·	
131	
IA I	
11	
▲■	
TAULE TOAL COLLAR COUNT AS CERTIS	
ITTATERT ISOF LOONDISNOM IORGETIE	KGEL
THYLK ISOL (QUAD SHOW JOBGETJE	XGET

TAYLR ISOL QUAD SHOW OBGET EXGET

'(-10+4*X)/2

Key in the equation for the first circle. Then use the command SHOW to substitute the expression stored in Y into the equation of the circle. The resulting equation is a function of one variable, X.

'X^2+Y^2-5=0''X SHOW







Since the equation in level 1 is a quadratic, use the QUAD command to find the value(s) of X.

'X ≣QUAD≣

The single number $X = 2$ is returned to level 1, thus the circles intersect in
one point. If there were two values of X , then the circles intersect in two
points. A complex value of X means there are no intersection points.

3: 2: 1:

Now use the Solver to find the corresponding value of Y. First, put the expression stored in the variable Y on the stack.

Y RCL

3:	
2:	2.00
1:	'(-10+4*X)/2'
TAYLR IS	OL QUAD SHOW OBGET EXGET

TAYLR ISOL QUAD SHOW OBGET EXGET

2.00

Store this expression in the variable EQ and display the Solver menu.

SOLV	STEQ
	R

3:	
2:	
1:	2.00
X EXPR=	

Store the value that you just found in the variable X.

≣x≣

Х:	2.00
2:	
1:	
Ň	EXPRE

Press $\overline{\equiv} \text{EXPR} = \overline{\equiv}$ to get the corresponding value of Y.

EXPR=

EXPR=-1.00	
2:	-1.00
X EXPR=	-1.00

Thus the circles intersect at the point (2, -1).

Purge the variables that were created in this example.

{ 'X''EQ''Y' PURGE

The Parabola

This section describes how to plot the graph of a parabola. Vertical parabolas are plotted as you would expect – solve for y, store the expression, and draw with the $\overline{\equiv}$ DRAW $\overline{\equiv}$ key. If you attempt to draw a horizontal parabola in the same manner, an error would result. This section demonstrates a program to draw a horizontal parabola.

Example: Plot the graph of $x^2 = 4(y + 1)$.

First, set the display to FIX 2.

CLEAR		
MODE	2	≣ FIX ≣

3: 2:		
1: STO [FIX]	CI ENG (D	EG] RAD

The semi-reduced form of the equation of a vertical parabola is $(x-h)^2 = 4p (y-k)$, where (h,k) is the vertex, x = h is the axis, (h,k+p) is the focus, and y = k - p is the directrix. In this example, h = 0, k = -1, and p = 1. Therefore, the vertex is V(0,-1); the axis is x = 0; the focus is F(0,0); and the directrix is y = -2.

Key in the equation for the parabola.

'X^2=4×(Y+1) [ENTER]

3:				
1:	' '	<^2=4	1 *(Y	+1)'
STD FIX	SCI	ENG	[DEG]	RAD

Isolate the variable Y.

Y ALGEBRA

3:	
2:	
1:	'X^2/4-1'
TAYLR IS	OL QUAD SHOW OBGET EXGET

Store the expression for Y in the variable EQ.

PLOT STEQ

i
TEQ RCEQ PMIN PMAX INDEP DRAW

Draw the graph of the parabola.

≣ DRAW ≣



Purge the variables created in this example.

ATTN { 'PPAR''EQ' PURGE

Example: Plot the graph of the horizontal parabola $y^2 = -4(x-1)$.

The general equation of a horizontal parabola is $(y - k)^2 = 4p(x - h)$. The vertex is (h, k); the axis is y = k; the focus is (h + p, k); and the directrix is x = h - p. Therefore, in this case, h, k, and p are equal to 1, 0, and -1, respectively. The vertex is V(1,0); the axis is y = 0; the focus is at (0,0); and the directrix is x = 2.

The following program plots a horizontal parabola. The program expects three numbers to be entered onto the stack as inputs into the program – the values of h, k, and p. (A prompt message is displayed requesting you to enter the numbers.) Given these three numbers, the program draws the graph of the parabola with the vertex at the center of the display and each tic mark on the axes represents 10 units.

Program Listing:

"ENTER h,k,p" HALT	
→hkp«	
DROP	
CLLCD	
10 *H 10 *W	
h k R→C CENTR	
DRAX	
$(Y-k)^{2} = 4 \times p \times (X-h)'$	
'X' ISÓL	
'X' STO	
k 20 – k 20 + FOR I	
I 'Y' STO	
X EVAL Y R→C	
PIXEL	

Explanation:

Prompt message. **Program halts** (you key in 3 numbers). Store the 3 numbers in h_k and p_k . Drop the prompt message. Clear the display. Multiply the height and width by 10. The center of the display is (h, k). Draw the axes. Equation for a horizontal parabola. Isolate X in the above equation. Store the expression in the variable X. Loop: do for I from k - 20 to k + 20. Store the current I in variable Y. Evaluate X and form point (X,Y). Draw point (X,Y).

1 STEP

Increment I by 1 and repeat until I > (k + 20). Purge variables X, Y, and PPAR.

Key in the program as shown below.

{ X Y PPAR } PURGE

« "ENTER h,k,p" HALT → h k p « DROP CLLCD 10 *H 10 *W h k R→C CENTR DRAX '(Y-k)^2= $4\times p\times (X-h)$ ' 'X' ISOL 'X' STO k 20 - k 20 + FOR I I 'Y' STO X EVAL Y R→C PIXEL 1 STEP { X Y PPAR } PURGE » » ENTER <>



Store the program in variable HPAR (for 'horizontal parabola').

'HPAR' STO

4:	
3:	
Ž:	
1:	

Display the User menu and execute the program.

USER HPAR



Enter in the values for h, k, and p. Continue running the program by pressing $\boxed{\text{CONT}}$. The graph of the parabola is drawn.

1,0,-1 CONT

Press ATTN to exit from the plot display.

Example: Plot the graph of $(y + 10)^2 = 12(x + 35)$.

This is the equation of a horizontal parabola with the vertex at V(h,k) = (-35,-10) and p=3. Run the program HPAR.

	3: 2: 1: "ENTER h,k,p" 1:
Key in the value of <i>h</i> .	
-35 ENTER	3: 2: "ENTER h,k,p" 1: -35.00 EPAR
Key in the value of k.	
-10 ENTER	3: "ENTER h,k,p" 2: -35.00 1: -10.00

Key in the value for p and continue running the program. The graph of the parabola is drawn.

3 CONT

···. 1	

To purge the program HPAR, do the following.

HPAR PURGE

Example: Horizontal Parabolas Using DRAW.

The program below is an alternate approach from the point-by-point function plot in program HPAR. This program takes h, k, and p from the stack and creates an EQ representing the upper and lower halves of the parabola and uses the DRAW command to create the plot. Note for $y^2(x) < 0$, the DRAW routine produces a line intersecting the curve at the vertex.

Key in the following program.

« 'X' PURGE \rightarrow h k p « '2 $\times \sqrt{((X-h)\times p)}$ ' EVAL DUP NEG = k + RE STEQ CLLCD DRAW ENTER <>

1: « 'X' PURGE → h k p « '2*√((X-h)*p)' EVAL DUP NEG = k + RE STEQ CLLCD DRAW »

Store the program by the name HPAR2 and purge the current plot parameters.

'HPAR2 STO 'PPAR PURGE

4:	
3:	
2:	
1:	

Execute the program for the previous horizontal parabola.

1,0,-1 USER HPAR2



Purge program HPAR2 if you wish.

'HPAR2 PURGE

The Ellipse and Hyperbola

This section describes the procedure for drawing the graphs of ellipses and hyperbolas.

Example: Plot the graph of the following ellipse.

$$\frac{(x+2)^2}{9} + \frac{(y-1)^2}{4} = 1$$

The general equation of an ellipse is

$$\frac{(x-h)^2}{a^2} + \frac{(y-k)^2}{b^2} = 1$$

The center is at the point (h,k). If a > b, then the major axis is parallel to the x-axis. The vertices are at points $(h \pm a, k)$; the foci are at points $(h \pm c, k)$, where $c = \sqrt{a^2 - b^2}$; and the ends of the minor axis are at points $(h, k \pm b)$. If b > a, then the major axis is parallel to the y-axis; the vertices are at points $(h, k \pm b)$; the foci are at points $(h, k \pm c)$; and the ends of the minor axis are at points $(h \pm a, k)$.

For this example, h = -2, k = 1, a = 3, b = 2, c = 2.24, and the major axis is parallel to the x-axis. The center is at (3,2); the vertices are at points (1,1) and (-5,1); the foci are at (0.24,1) and (-4.24,1); and the ends of the minor axis are at points (-2,3) and (-2,-1).

The following program draws the graph of an ellipse. After a prompt message is displayed, the program expects the values of h, k, a, and b to be entered onto the stack. The graph of the ellipse is drawn with its center in the center of the display. Each tic mark on the axes represents two units.

Program Listing:	Explanation:
"ENTER h,k,a,b"	Prompt message.
HALT	Program halts
	(you enter in the 4 values).
→hkab	Values are stored in h, k, a and b .
DROP	Drop the prompt message.
CLLCD	Clear the display.
2 *H 2 *W	Multiply the height and width by 2.
h k R→C CENTR	The center of the display is (h,k) .
DRAX	Draw the axes.
'(X-h)^2/a^2+	The general equation

 $(Y-k)^2/b^2=1'$ 'Y' ISOL 'Y' STO -1 1 FOR J J 's1' STO h a - h a + FOR I I 'X' STO X Y EVAL R \rightarrow C PIXEL .2 STEP

2 STEP { PPAR X Y s1 } PURGE

Key in the program as shown below.

```
« "ENTER h,k,a,b" HALT

→ h k a b « DROP

CLLCD 2 *H 2 *W h k

R→C CENTR DRAX

'(X-h)^2\diva^2+(Y-k)^2\div

b^2=1' 'Y' ISOL 'Y' STO

-1 1 FOR J J 's1' STO

h a - h a + FOR I I 'X'

STO X Y EVAL R→C PIXEL

.2 STEP 2 STEP {PPAR X

Y s1 } PURGE » »

ENTER <>
```

Store the program in the variable 'ELLIPSE'.

'ELLIPSE' STO

of an ellipse.
Isolate Y from the equation.
Store the expression in the variable Y .
Loop1: do for J from -1 to 1.
Store the current J in variable s 1.
Loop2: do for I from $h - a$ to $h + a$.
Store the current I in variable X .
Form the point (X,Y) .
Plot the point (X,Y) .
Increment I by .2 and repeat
until $I > h + a$.
Increment J by 2 and repeat loop1.
Purge the variables
ana ata di har thia mna anama

created by this program.

1:	<pre>« "ENTER h,k,a,b" HALT → h k a b « DROP CLLCD 2.00 *H</pre>
	2.00 *W N K K7C

Display the User menu and run the program. The prompt message is returned to level 1.



Enter in the value for h.

-2 ENTER

3: 2: "ENTER h,k,a,b" 1: -2.00 ELLT2

> 3: 2: 1:

ELLIP

Key in the value for k.

1 ENTER

Enter in the value for a.

3 ENTER

2.		 	
3:		-	2.00
4			5.00
		 	5.00
ELLIP			

"ENTER h,k,

Enter in the value for b and press CONT to continue running the program. The graph of the ellipse is drawn.

2 CONT

|--|

Press ATTN to exit from the plot display and, if desired, purge the program.

ATTN 'ELLIPSE PURGE

Example: Plot the graph of the vertical hyperbola

$$\frac{(y+1)^2}{4} - \frac{(x-4)^2}{2} = 1$$

The graph of the vertical hyperbola can be drawn by first isolating the variable y. Since y is a squared term, the result of isolating y is an expression representing the two solutions. One solution represents the top half of the hyperbola and the other solution represents the lower half. Use the Solver to find the two solutions. After the two expressions for y are found, set them equal to each other and draw their graphs. (This technique is used to draw two functions simultaneously).

Enter in the equation as shown below.

'(Y+1)^2÷4-(X-4)^2÷2=1' ENTER

Isolate the variable Y. The result is an expression representing two solutions. The variable s1 can be either +1 or -1.

Y SOLV ISOL

2: 1:	's1*√((1+(X-4)^2/2)*
SIE	Q REED SOLVE ISOL QUAD SHOW

Store the expression for Y in the variable EQ and display the Solver menu.

3: 2:

х

Ξ	STEQ	
Ī	SOLVR	

Store the number 1 in the variable *s1*.

1 **SI**

S1:	1.	00
2:		
1.		
1.		
S1	X	EXPR=

1: 1: 1:	1	1 ((61+) 1+(X-4	x=4)/*)^2/2.	72) (*4)-
S1	X	EXPR=		

Store the number -1 in the variable s1.

-1 S1

≤1: −1.00 1: '√((1+(X-4)^2/2)*4)- 1'
S1 X EXPR=







Ξ		0	_	Ξ	

≣ EXPR= ≣

ιĒ	EXPR=	≣.

S1:	1.00
2:	
1:	
51	X EXPRE

EXPR=
Set the expression in level 2 equal to the one in level 1.

= ENTER



Store this equation in the variable EQ and plot the graph of the hyperbola.



•	ŀ	~	
· · · · · · · · ·		• •	••-

Press ATTN to exit from the plot display and multiply the height by 10.

ATTN 10 #+H

3:	
5.	
<u> </u>	
1:	
PPAR RES AXES CENTR ¥1	ALL YH

Multiply the width by 10.

10 *****W

3:					
2:					
PPAR	RES	AXES	CENTR	¥М	ХH

Draw the graph again. Each tic mark represents 10 units.

DRAW



Press ATTN and purge the variables used in this example.

{ 'PPAR''s1''EQ' PURGE

3:
2.
1
PPHR KES HXES CENTK *W *H

Example: Plot the graph of the horizontal hyperbola

$$\frac{(x-4)^2}{4} - \frac{(y+1)^2}{2} = 1$$

The general equation of a hyperbola is (x - h) 2/a 2 - (y - k) 2/b 2 = 1. For this example h = 4, k = -1, a = 2, and $b = \sqrt{2}$.

A combination of the program to draw a horizontal parabola and the program to draw an ellipse can be used to draw the horizontal hyperbola. (A listing and explanation is not given here. Refer to the section entitled "The Parabola" for an explanation of specific program steps.)

Key in the program as shown below.

```
« "ENTER h,k,a,b" HALT

→ h k a b « DROP

CLLCD 2 *H 2 *W h k

R→C CENTR DRAX

'(X-h)^2\diva^2-(Y-k)^2\div

b^2=1' 'X' ISOL 'X' STO

-1 1 FOR J J 's1' STO

k 4 - k 4 + FOR I I 'Y'

STO X EVAL Y R→C PIXEL

.2 STEP 2 STEP { X Y S1

PPAR } PURGE » »

ENTER <>
```

"ENTER h,k,a,b" 1: « ×Н 00 ¥W h k

Store the program in the variable HHYPERBOLA (for 'horizontal hyperbola').

```
'HHYPERBOLA' STO
```

|--|

Display the User menu and execute the program. A prompt message is displayed requesting you to enter in the values for h, k, a, and b.

3:		
1:	"ENTER	h,k,a,b"
HHYPE		

Enter in the value for h.

4 ENTER	3: 2: "ENTER h,k,a,b" 1: 4.00
Enter in the value for k.	
	3: "ENTER h,k,a,b" 2: 4.00 1: -1.00
Key in the value for a.	
2 ENTER	3: 4.00 2: -1.00 1: 2.00

Calculate the value of b by entering in the number 2 and taking the square root of it. Press CONT to continue running the program. The graph of the horizontal hyperbola is drawn.

2 🖌 CONT

۲. 		
 \mathbf{V}	$\overline{\zeta}$	

If desired, purge the program.

USER 'HHYPERBOLA PURGE

Example: Plotting the General Form of the Equation.

As an alternative to point-by-point plotting of the functions, the DRAW command can be used by separating the ellipse and hyperbola equations into upper and lower halves. The following programs take h, k, a, and b from the stack and produce an EQ representing the ellipse and hyperbola equations. The two halves are then drawn in parallel. The program HHYP and MELL will draw horizontal lines at points where $y^2(x) < 0$.

Key in the programs below.

The first program's parameters specify a vertical hyperbola.

-1 1 MCON ENTER VHYP STO

.	
3	
4	
1:	
VHYP	

The second program's parameters specify a horizontal hyperbola.

« 1 -1 MCON ENTER 'HHYP STO

3.	
2:	- 1
7.	
1.	
HHYP VHYP	

An ellipse has both squared terms positive, and thus parameters 1,1.

« 1 1 MCON ENTER 'MELL STO

2:	
2	
5	
1.	
MELL HHYP VHYP	

The last program implements the general form of the equation for an ellipse and hyperbola, with parameters input from programs VHYP, HHYP and MELL.

```
« {X Y s1} PURGE

\rightarrow h k a b sx sy «

'sx×SQ((X-h);a)+

sy×SQ((Y-k);b)=1'

EVAL 'Y' ISOL DUP 1 's1'

STO EVAL SWAP 's1' SNEG

EVAL = RE STEQ CLLCD

DRAW 's1' PURGE » »

ENTER

'MCON STO
```



Now try the previous examples from this section. Purge any plot parameters that have been specified.





Note the difference in the centering of the ellipse from the previous program in the section.

Now draw the vertical hyperbola.



The horizontal hyperbola has the same parameters as the preceding graph.





Purge the programs above if desired.

{ 'VHYP''HHYP''MELL''MCON' PURGE

Parametric Equations

Typical parametric equation problems include plotting the graph described by the equations and describing the path of a projectile. Examples of these two problems are included in this section.

Example: Make a table of values and plot the points for

 $x = 2-3\cos(t)$ and $y = 4+2\sin(t), 0 \le t \le 360$.

First, set the angle mode to degrees.



The following program creates a table of values and plots the points. The program assumes the expression for the x coordinate is stored in variable X and the expression for the y coordinate stored in the variable Y. The program also assumes that the variable for time is capital T. The inputs to the program are the range (the low and high values) and the increment of T.

Program Listing:	Explanation:
"LO,HI,INC?"	Prompt message.
HALT	Program halts (you enter in the 3 inputs).
→ lo hi inc	Inputs are stored in the respective variable
« DROP	Drop the prompt message.
lo hi FOR I	Loop: do for I from lo to hi.
I 'T' STO	Store the current I in the variable T.
T X EVAL Y EVAL	Take T, X , and Y and put them
{3} →ARRY	in a vector.
Σ +	Add the vector to the ΣDAT matrix.
inc STEP	Increment I by the value inc and repeat loop.
CLLCD	Clear the display.
2 3 COL ₂	Denote which columns to plot.
$SCL\Sigma DRW\Sigma$	Scale the coordinates and draw the points.
$\{T \Sigma PAR PPAR\}$	Purge the variables
PURGE	created by the program.

Key in the program as shown below.

« "LO, HI, INC?" HALT
\rightarrow lo hi inc « DROP
lo hi FOR I I 'T'
STO T X EVAL Y EVAL
$\{3\} \rightarrow ARRY \Sigma +$
inc STEP CLLCD
2 3 COLE SCLE
DRWE { T EPAR
PPAR } PURGE » »
ENTER <>
2 3 COLΣ SCLΣ DRWΣ { T ΣPAR PPAR } PURGE » » ENTER <>

1: « "LO,HI,INC?" HALT → lo hi inc « DROP lo hi FOR I I 'T' STO T X EVAL Y EVAL

Store the program in the variable PAREQ (for 'parametric equations').

4:

4: 3: 2: 1:

PAREQ STO

Rey in the expression for the x coordinate and store it in the variable.	Key
--	-----

Key in the expression for the y coordinate and store it in the variable Y.

Display the User men	u and execute the program.	The prompt message is
returned to level 1.		

3: 2:					
1:			'LO,I	HI,I	NC?"
Y	Х	PARE			

Enter in the low value of T.

3: 2: 1:	"LO,HI,INC?" 0.00
Y X	PARE

3: 2: 1:		

4:			
3.			
ž			
1			
T •			

Enter in the high value of T.

360 ENTER



Let the value for the increment be 20. Continue running the program.

20 CONT

•	ł.	•	•	•	•	
• •	† .				•	•

The graph of the parametric equations is plotted. Press $\overline{\text{ATTN}}$ to exit from the plot display. The table of values is stored in ΣDAT . *T* is in column 1; *X* is in column 2; and *Y* is in column 3. You can see the first few entries to the matrix by pressing the soft key labled ΣDAT . To see the individual entries, use the GETI command.

Purge the variables used in this example.

{ 'DAT''Y''X''PAREQ' PURGE

Example: An archer stands 200 meters from a target. (The target is at the same height as the archer.) The archer shoots the arrow at an initial velocity of 170 miles per hour. At what angle should the archer aim the arrow in order to hit the target?

First, set the angle mode to degrees and the display to FIX 2.





The parametric equations for the path of a projectile moving in a plane at time t with the origin as the starting point are

$$x = v_i t \cos(\alpha)$$
 and $y = v_i t \sin(\alpha) - .5gt^2$

where v_i is the initial velocity, α is the angle from the horizontal at which the projectile starts, and g is the force due to gravity. (All other forces are assumed negligible.)

When the arrow hits the target, the height y is zero and the range x is 200 meters. The initial velocity is $v_i = 170$ mph. Thus there are two equations in two unknowns (the angle and time). To find the angle, first isolate t in

the first parametric equation. The result is an expression for t. Substitute the expression in the second parametric equation. Now you have one equation in one unknown. Use the Solver to find the angle.

Key in the first parametric equation and isolate T.

D •	
3.	
2:	
<u></u>	
11	'X/COS(B)/V'
I STEQ RC	SQ SOLVR ISOL QUAD SHOW

Store the resulting expression for T in the variable T.

'T STO

1:	
STED REED SOLURI TSOL CUONS	SUMPL

Key in the second parametric equation with $g = 9.8m/s^2$. Substitute the expression for T in the equation by using the SHOW command so that all implicit references to X are made explicit. The result is the equation for the path in rectangular coordinates.

1:

'Y=V×T×SIN(A)-.5× 9.8×T^2''X **≣SHOW**≣

Store the equation in the variable EQ and display the Solver menu.

≣	STEQ
≣	SOLVR

3: 2: 1: Y V X A LEFT= RT=

STER REER SOLVE ISOL QUAD SHOP

=V*(X/COS(A)/V)*

Store the number 0 in the variable Y.

0 Y

Y:	0.00	1		
2:				
1 · Y	V	X	Ĥ	LEFT= RT=

Store the number 200 in the variable X.

200 X

X:	20	Ø.	ЫŊ		
2:					
I.	Ų		х	Ĥ	LEFT= RT=

Since we are using SI units to solve this problem, convert mph to m/s. Enter in the number 170.

170 ENTER

3: 2: 1:				170.00
Y	Ų	Х	Ĥ	LEFT= RT=

Key in the units 'mph'.

LC 'mph ENTER

2: 170.00 1: 'mph	3:				
1 'mph	2				170,00
	1				'mph'
		U	2	Ĥ	

Convert 170 mph to m/s. Key in the units "m/s". Since m/s is not in the Units catalog, use double quotes around the units. CONVERT recognizes multiplicative combinations of the units listed in the catalog.

LC	"m÷s"	ENTER
CON	VERT	

3 2 1	: : :				76.00 "m/s"	
	Y	Ų	X	Ĥ	LEFT= RT=	

Drop '	'm/s".
--------	--------

DROP

3:				
1:				76.00
Y	Ŷ	Х	Ĥ	LEFT= RT=

Store the velocity 76 m/s in the variable V.

≣v≣

V:	76.0	414		
2				
1.	1 11		1.557-1	PT-

Let the number 0 be an initial estimate for the angle A.

0 **A**

HB	0.00	1			
2:					
1:					
Y	Ŷ	X	Ĥ	LEFT=	RT=

Find the angle.

A: 9.92								
Sign Reversal								
1.				9.92				
Y	V.	X	Ĥ	LEFT= RT=				

Thus the archer must aim the arrow at an angle of 9.92 degrees to hit the target.

How long will it take for the arrow to hit the target? To find the time, simply press T followed by \rightarrow NUM. (Equivalently, T ENTER EVAL will recall the expression and then evaluate it with the current variable assignments).

T →NUM

3:				
Ž:				9.92
1:				2.67
Y	Ŷ	X	Ĥ	LEFT= RT=

Purge the following variables.

{ 'A''V''X''Y''EQ''T' PURGE

Step-by-Step Examples for Your HP-28C

Algebra and College Math contains a variety of examples and solutions to show how you can solve your technical problems more easily.

Functions and Equations

Rational Functions and Polynomial Long Division Complex Numbers Hyperbolic and Inverse Hyperbolics Function Evaluation and Plotting Quadratic and Polynomial Equations Systems of Linear Equations

Infinite Sequences and Series

Trigonometry

Relations and Identities Functions of One and Two Angles Function Plotting Inverse Trigonometric Function Trigonometric Equations

Geometry

Rectangular and Polar Coordinates Line, Circle, Parabola, Ellipse and Hyperbola Plotting Parametric Equations



Reorder Number 00028-90041

00028-90056 Printed in U.S.A. 3/87

